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Definitions

Bx

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires,
the following expressions shall have the following meanings.

“B2B”
[ B2B |

“B2C”
[ B2C ]

“Board”
-

“CG Code”
[dEERFAI
“Companies Ordinance”

INCIRESEN

“Company” or “the
Company”

ZAYNCIN

“Director(s)”

[E %]

“ESG”
[RE - -1HeakEeha]

“Group”
[A&EE ]

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
(&%

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK

dollars” or “HK$”
&)

RAFEHRA RXEAZBEMEN UTHAER
B NHHE -

business to business
TEHLE

business to customers

EEE=S

board of Directors

Exw

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

YR LT AR A B+ e X E R T A

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended
and supplemented from time to time

FB AP F622F (R AHER) - EAEIEFT M AT

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability on 13 June 2000 and, except where the context
otherwise requires, all of its subsidiaries, or where the context refers to the time
before it became the holding company thereof, our Company’s present
subsidiaries

REFEBIZERER AR - R2000F6 A13HE B REFAMA L HERR % QA & (B
NESZSBREMNEMBEMBRARN (HMXBHEEKBERAFANNERE) RAAQ A
B M8 A A

the director(s) of the Company

ZN/NSTE- =5

environmental, social and governance
RIE HEgKEAR

the Company and its subsidiaries
/NS DR RY SN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of Mainland China
REE B RITHE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BREEEE
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Definitions (continued)

2% (E)

“Listing”
[

“Listing Date”

[E A H
“Listing Rules”
[ A8 Al

“Macau”

[VRFT)
“Mainland China” or “PRC”
[Hr B b | sk [ A B

“Net Proceeds”
[FT15 s/ IB ) 58 |

“020”
[ 020 |

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

[E R AR % SRR

&l

“Prospectus”

[ ER]

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[AR# |

“SFO”
(78 7 & #1815 B )

“Share(s)”
A% 7 ]

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Mty OB SR BT E AR BT

11 May 2018, the date which the Company’s shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on
the Stock Exchange

2018F5A11H  RARIRMNE R MW ERB ARG E ZE8 B H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time

BRMARIMBERABES LWHRA - ETRER M

the Macau Special Administrative Region of Mainland China

REDRPFIERIITER R

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this Annual Report,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

hEARKAE  RAFRME - TREES RFIREE

the net proceeds from issuance of the Shares in connection with the Listing
#b T E TR B BT 1S SR R R

online to offline
HBEHET

the pre-IPO share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 15
December 2017, details of which are set forth in Note 27 to the financial
statements

RRABR2017F12A15B B R ERMAN B R ARBERIBRETS - FHEHREY
¥R Mt 527

prospectus of the Company dated 30 April 2018
RAFHER2018F4A30R 2 MR E R

Renminbi, the lawful currency of Mainland China

AR FBEEEEE
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended and supplemented from time to time

BREPIESNEEZ LE R (B TRKERT RfRx)

ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with a par value of HK$0.10 each
AR RIS R & IR E{EO0.1078 TT HY & A X

TR HFH ERERERERAA 3



Definitions (continued)

2% (&)

“Share Option Scheme”

the share option scheme conditionally approved and adopted by the Company on

15 December 2017, details of which are set forth in Note 27 to the financial

statements
[BE A w1 31
at27

“Share Option Schemes”

KARR2017F12 158 BI&H L E R R AR BB ERT S -

EACE N EE]

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme

[ S BR8] BRA 3 E A B ROER 8 R B AR 8

“Shareholders”

(AR

holder(s) of Shares

EEUESTEDN

“Stock Exchange”
B 32 P EEBMARIMARRAR

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate”, “connected
person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling shareholder”,
“subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have the
meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the

context otherwise requires.

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this Annual
Report have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not
be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them.

The English translation of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations in Chinese or another language
included in this Annual Report is for identification purposes
only. To the extent there is any inconsistency between the
Chinese names of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations and their English translations,
the Chinese names shall prevail.

*  For identification purposes only
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Corporate Information

~EER
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EEg

BITES

HEBRLE(FE)

SR8 & S
(BT R20214E5 A4 H 4+ 3%)

B g/ A

SR IPB L E
(ZER2021F5H4H £ 31)

BYFHTES
WEF KL
EXERE
BEARRIESRAE

EXE2Z8g
BRZEAY
HEYSLE(ER)
IXHEE
BESRIE ST A

REEESE
HEERE(ZE)
ExXERE
BEARIERAE

FHEES
EXERE(EE)
mEEEE
WEZ XL

NEME

B EE(BESHAE
(BT R20214E5 A4 H 4+ 3%)

B &g/ A

(ZER2021F5H4H 4 3%)
REARR
B 5 5/ 8
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AL DR A 3 E R A B
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Corporate Information (continued)

~AREF(E)

PRINCIPAL BANKS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE IN BERMUDA
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Flats F—J, 11th Floor, Block 1

Kwai Tak Industrial Centre

15-33 Kwai Tak Street

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN BERMUDA

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited

Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.twcoffee.com

STOCK CODE
2119
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Chairman's Statement

ETR®ME

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Tsit Wing International
Holdings Limited, | hereby present to you the Company’s
annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
The worldwide novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”)
pandemic remained recurrent in 2021, and it had been posing
uncertainty and ongoing challenges to all walks of life.
Nevertheless, with the tremendous effort made by the Group to
adapt to the evolving market amid the continuing
implementation of various social distancing measures by the
PRC and Hong Kong governments, the Group rigorously
achieved sales growth in 2021. According to the provisional
data from the Census and Statistics Department, the revenue
for the Hong Kong restaurant sector has increased by 16.8%
in 2021 as compared to 2020. The business of the Group
remained sound and recorded a growth rate of over 13% in
Hong Kong sales revenue in 2021 as compared to 2020, which
is in line with the market.

Similarly, the Group recorded an encouraging growth rate of
34.3% in its PRC sales revenue in 2021, which exceeded the
growth rate of 18.6% of the national foodservice market in the
corresponding period according to the “Report on China
Foodservice Market Analysis 2021 and Market Forecast 2022
(20214 B & £k T 35 9 AT & 20224 T 3% A & T8 8) W] &)”
published by the China Cuisine Association.

During 2021, the Group has proactively evaluated its own sales
strategies as the Group observed that some customers in the
beverage solutions segment had been hit harder by the
COVID-19 pandemic than the rest. In hope of coping with such
market change, the Group has shifted its focus to increasing
its B2C sales via further developing its online platform. Besides,
the Group has continued to focus on the Greater Bay Area and
Yangtze River Delta through establishing a management centre
in Shenzhen, a production line in Dongguan and a sales hub in
both Guangzhou and Shanghai. In addition, the Group has also
set foot in North China Region through adopting the
distributorship model.

BALRIR

AANERRBELEBBERERRATEETE
M ETE2MARFEZ2021F12A8318 1E5
BREENFR -

2 Bk A ik % & m ([ CoVID-19)) & 1§ X
021 FNMARE  BETESETRTHEEM R
SEE - AT AEERTHRAE S @E
FEERESBRNEEERSBH I BEER
THWHEE  MAEBER2021FEHRE D
HERR - BERNATENBRESE R
2021%F - BB BERE W ABR2020F G i1 7
16.8% ° NEBEMEFEHRFIBE  2021FFH
4 & Y A HI20204F 48 L 8% 15 #B #B13% M) 1% &
EHEMIBES —We

E i - NEE2021F R HERAHRES A
HEMNKRE343%  BATPEZTEHBT M
#2021 4F B & 8L T 5 9 1T [ 20224F 11 4% Al
SEABMEANRAHZ2EERMSHILRE
18.6% ©

2021F - AR AEEEBRIBEHRRERBH S
— RS EATHCOVID-19R 5T EREME
PERE  IAAREEBREFHESNHEER
B - BIEYZMBEL AEEDBBE—F
BEGLEFE BELEBREBCHEE B
SN AEBEBBERINKLIERF L ER
EMEEGUREEMNRE ESHNEEPL - #
BREINEREER=ZA - I XEEITRB
FRADHEER  FEIHMERIED -

TR HFH ERERERERAA 7



Chairman's Statement (continued)

ETRHKE(E)

TOWARDS THE FUTURE

Since the beginning of 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic has
become worse again. As a result of the government further
tightening its social distancing measures, such as suspension
of dine-in services and many more to come if the situation
deteriorates,
uncertainties. The volatility in the global market has also been
intensifying, leading to the ever-rising challenges in inflationary
price of commodities and supply chain risks. The Group will
robustly monitor its costs and make relevant adjustments as
and when appropriate. Meanwhile, the Group will strive to
further strengthen in the Greater Bay Area,
Yangtze River Delta, and North China Region as well as
expand its production line in the PRC.

the market is filled with uncontrollable

its business

As mentioned in the Group’s 2020 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, the Group will also be more determined to
commit itself to the maintenance of environmental sustainability
and the fulfilment of social responsibilities. The Group will
collaborate with a university in Hong Kong and explore the
possibilities of recycling coffee and tea waste. The Group is
looking forward to playing a proactive role in supporting a
sustainable business practice.

Looking ahead, the Group will remain agile and vigilant when
executing the Group’s long-term business plan in Hong Kong
and the PRC and is devoted to exploring the sustainable
development of the Group with the view of creating value for its
Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to all staff members for their commitment, dedication, and
contribution. | would also like to extend my sincere gratitude to
our business partners and Shareholders for their unfailing
support. | remain confident in the Group’s prospects and its
ability to achieve exceptional milestones in the coming years.

Wong Tat Tong
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Despite the challenging market situation for the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group has achieved a growth in sales
revenue in both the Hong Kong and PRC markets. Given the
Group has been clouded by the prevailing uncertainties as a
result of the on-going COVID-19 pandemic, its performance
was encouraging. In the previous year, the increase in profits
was mainly attributable to the Group’s beverage solution
business segment in the PRC. On top of focusing on the
Group’s traditional B2B sales, it has continued to branch out
its B2C sales through various offline and online platforms and
broadened its sales channels.

Moreover, the Group has enhanced its presence in the Greater
Bay Area and the Yangtze River Delta Area by establishing a
management centre in Shenzhen, a production line in
Dongguan and a sales hub in both Guangzhou and Shanghai.
In addition, the Group has also set foot in North, Central and
West China Regions through adopting the distributorship
model. The Group will endeavour to further develop its PRC
business by utilising the extensive network established in the
past years.

Apart from beverages products, the business plan of the
Group’s meat processing line became operational in 2021 and
the Group plans to further optimise and develop its frozen food
business.

REVENUE

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue categorized by
business segments for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020:

X% EREE
EETNAERZ2021F12831H IEFEE T imk
B AEEEEERPBETSNEHEE RS
BE - ERAEBERFEACOVID-19R L BN
AmEE T T ZRRABESAHE £
F o oRMENEERNRPENBERRENER
DE - BREERAKEFHHB2BIHE I - H
BEIBSEBETRGELEFEMEBCHEUR
BREERE -

BE AKEEEBSERIXLEEF L H
S EERANMERMN N EBRNEER L
MBEXNERER=AMENER X I
AEETREBRAOHEERN  EFEL  Eh K
FPMRRIBR c NEBEHNBEELFR
BYMBEZEE BHARECEEPBEMNER -

BRERGmAN  REBMAENIENERTER
021 FFARER RFHE—SPELEERE
S2RBRMER-

U A
TREYIFE LKL ETFE £2021F K20204F
12ABHLEFEREE DB AEE
WA

Year ended 31 December
B Z12A31BLLFE

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
(HK$’000) % of total (HK$’000) % of total

(FET) HAERDLL

(TET) HREANL

Beverage Solutions BHRE B R 750,009 97.8% 623,261 97.6%
Food Products B3 16,784 2.2% 15,246 2.4%
Total 48 &t 766,793 100% 638,507 100.0%

TR HFH ERERERERAA 9



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue categorized by T~ & & | #F 48 48 & ¥ 7 & £20214F £20204F
geographical location for the years ended 31 December 2021 12A31H It FER BN B E DM AN E B W
and 2020: A

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31B LEE

2020
20204

(HK$°000) % of total

(T#ET) HHRBADLL

Hong Kong BE 473,765 61.8% 418,663 65.6%
Mainland China AR K 281,849 36.8% 209,876 32.9%
Others Hib 11,179 1.4% 9,968 1.5%
Total 4=t 766,793 100% 638,507 100.0%

Note: Others include revenue derived from sales in the United States, Mt : M BEREER BN - ieX B 5

Australia, Canada, Macau, Malaysia, Philippines, Singapore and RPETE - FERE IR A EEENRA -
Taiwan.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT EFRERNE

MARGIN

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit of each of T 3% & 5| 35 45 & & ¥ 7§ & £20214F K£20204F
the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31 12A31HBIFEAEEZEB I TN AEER
December 2021 and 2020: E R -

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31B L& E

2020
20204

(HK$°000) % of tota

(FH&mT) HRERS L

Beverage Solutions B K B BR 5 206,482 99.2% 259,235 98.5%
Food Products B i 2,496 0.8% 3,819 1.5%
Total #at 298,978 100% 263,054 100.0%

10 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit margin of
each of the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020:

TR IFE KL L ETEE £2021F K20204F
12A3IB L FEASESEB TN AEE
FEFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Beverage Solutions BERREE R 39.5% 41.6%
Food Products B M 14.9% 25.0%
Total ot 39.0% 41.2%

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a
total revenue of HK$766.8 million, representing an increase of
HK$128.3 million, or 20.1%, compared to the year ended 31
December 2020. The
attributable to the increase in revenue derived from beverage
solutions business, and to a lesser extent, the increase in
revenue derived from the food products business. Gross profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$299.0
million, representing an increase of HK$35.9 million, or 13.6%,
compared to the year ended 31 December 2020. Gross profit
margin decreased from 41.2% for the year ended 31
December 2020 to 39.0% for the year ended 31 December
2021.

increase in revenue was primarily

Beverage solutions

The Group provides a one-stop service for its commercial
customers that covers marketing analysis, recipe development,
sourcing, production, marketing and after sales services which
include regular customer training and equipment maintenance.
Such services are provided through the Group’s five
operational modules, which include () menu management and
recipe development, (i) strong global sourcing network, (iii)
automated product execution, (iv) sophisticated distribution
system for diverse customers, and (v) comprehensive customer
services.

BHE2021F12A31HIEFE - AEEHEBRIK
A766.88 &8 T ' B A £2020F12A318 1k
FEEMN28.38 EHTLH20.1% © KA TY
TEHRERKRERBEBRE LKA -
HARRMEBEEMWALIMN - B E2021F
12A31B IEFE®EFN /2908 EEF T &
B £2020F 12 A31H I F E I N35.98 &F T
513.6% ° £ F| X B E £2020F 124318 L F
EH41.2% N 28 220214128318 I FE
#139.0% °

BEMEKERHE
AEEMBERTFREREMS ST - FHRHE
BORB OAE MHEHEEREERE(EE
RETHBEEEIIRREEE) O — RS -
ZERBEBAEEREEEREREE  BIE
()VERE IR N8RRI 2 ¢ (i) 58 KEY 2 IRIREE
& (NBEBEMERNT  (VARZTIEEPT
RHRBERZERS RVEENEP RS -

TR HFH ERERERERAA 11



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

Revenue from the beverage solutions segment increased by
HK$126.7 million, or 20.3%, from HK$623.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to HK$750.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The increase was primarily due to
the increase in revenue derived from Mainland China following
the recovery from COVID-19 pandemic since January 2021.
Gross profit increased by HK$37.3 million, or 14.4%, from
HK$259.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
HK$296.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which
was mainly in line with the increase in revenue. Gross profit
margin of the beverage solutions business decreased from
41.6% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 39.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2021, primarily because of the
increase in raw material cost of coffee beans.

Food products

The Group offers frozen food to renowned brands and its own
frozen food brand “Papa Chef” under “original equipment
manufacturer” (OEM) arrangement.

Revenue from the food products segment increased by HK$1.6
million, or 10.5%, from HK$15.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to HK$16.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase was primarily because of the
increase in revenue derived from Hong Kong. Gross profit
decreased by HK$1.3 million or 34.2% from HK$3.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to HK$2.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and gross profit margin
decreased from 25.0% for the year ended 31 December 2020
to 14.9% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS
Hong Kong

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue generated in
Hong Kong increased by HK$55.1 million, or 13.2%, from
HK$418.7 million in the year ended 31 December 2020 to
HK$473.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
increase in revenue generated in Hong Kong was primarily
because of increase in sales of coffee, tea and milk products
as a result of increase in customers’ demand.

12 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2021

BERR BIPR T 2 2B YU B 8 22020412 A 31
HIEFE/M623.38 &L MN26.78 88T
%20.3% % & £2021F12A31H 1IF £ [ &
750.0E BB TT o ZIGMTIE E HMR2021F18
fECOVID-19& B R 1B 1% - T AKBEEFBE A
EEBIAIG I - EFI B EE20206F12A31H
IFFE 2502 8B /8 T hn37.38 B8 Tk
14.4% % & £2021F12 A318 It F E #9296.5
BEBIL KRB EHEKAEN - BEHREKE
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€ #941.6% N B 28 E2021F12A318 L FE
M139.5% * JhE E MR M TES &Y R M B A 15
e

3.
AEERMKIAEEIOEMZHIE T RHEES
i K B R =R R famm i [ Papa Chef | #) 20R

A g
ERoon °

R AW A B E ZE2020F12A318 L FE
B15.28 BB T IN1.68 8B TEH10.5% = &
F2021F12A31B IEFEM16.8E BB L © 15
MEBRHREBEEMRAEN - EF AE
2020512318 IF & E #3.88 & B LR
1.3B&B T34 2% B E2021F12H318 1t
FEM2588E T ' i EF XA EH E2020F
128318 IF FEH25.0% & =& £2021F12
A31B IEFE#14.9% °

BihBNEE 5 HIRA

'8

HE2021F12A31HIEFE  RBEBEAENHIK
A B E2020F12A31H It F E H418.78 &
78 T IN55.1 8 BB T 513.2% - & & £2021
F12A31H L FEMA738E BB T - BBE
FRWREIEMEZHRMGE  RRDEERD
HE R P HRIG g e
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENWR DN (&)

Mainland China

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue generated in
Mainland China increased by HK$71.9 million, or 34.3%, from
HK$209.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
HK$281.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
increase in revenue was primarily due to the increase in sales
volume of coffee, tea and milk products.

Others

In addition, the Group also sells a small portion of our
products to Macau and other overseas regions including the
United States, Australia, Canada, Malaysia, Philippines,
Singapore and Taiwan through distributors. For the year ended
31 December 2021, revenue generated in other markets
increased by HK$1.2 million, or 12.0%, from HK$10.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to HK$11.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in revenue
was primarily as a result of the partial recovery of the overall
economy from the COVID-19 pandemic.

BUSINESS PROSPECT

The COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong has become worse
recently. As a result of the government further tightening its
social distancing measures, such as suspension of dine-in
services and many more to come if the situation deteriorates,
the Group is unable to foresee and assess such impact on our
businesses in the coming few months.

In light of a rapidly changing market which filled with
uncontrollable uncertainties especially given the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group will proactively evaluate and adjust its
sales strategies. Given the recurrent COVID-19 pandemic that
has impacted the food and beverage industry, the Group will
diversify its sales channels and promote its product mix to new
and existing channels such as convenience stores and 020
platforms. The Group will its focus to
strengthening its B2C sales via increasing its online platform
coverage, and further optimising and developing its frozen food
business. Meanwhile, the Group will monitor its costs prudently
in response to the rising price of commodities and supply
chain risks and adjust its business plan and strategies as and
when appropriate.

also diversify
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Eying the great potential of the PRC market, the Group will
continue to strengthen its market penetration and expand its
production line in the Greater Bay Area, Yangtze River Delta,
through utilising the extensive network established in the PRC
in the past years.

As mentioned in the Group’s 2020 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, the Group’s commitment to maintaining
environmental sustainability and fulfilling social responsibilities
will not wane. By playing a proactive role in supporting a
sustainable business practice, the Group will collaborate with a
university in Hong Kong and explore the possibilities of
recycling coffee and tea waste.

The year 2021 was a difficult year affecting people and
business from all walks of life, yet the Group was well-
positioned to overcome obstacles along its way. Looking
ahead, the Group will remain agile and vigilant when executing
the Group’s long-term business plan in Hong Kong and the
PRC and is devoted to exploring the sustainable development
of the Group with the view of creating value for its
Shareholders.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one subsidiary
incorporated in Hong Kong, namely, Cadiz Enterprises Limited,
was deregistered pursuant to section 751 of the Companies
Ordinance:

Nature of business prior
to dissolution

FRE AT SR E

Name of Company

ACIEE

REPETHENER AEEHNABEE
FEPEEYNEZRG BEMREEE
B R=ANME2EXRNBERELER -

ﬁm$E@mm$%% ek mﬁi%

CAEBHRBREAFEERETHE
Em%m%@ mo\ﬂﬁﬂihT#ﬁﬁ%
EB AEEBEES—MAZ245E FRO
LT N B R 2508 B BT RE M o

021 FREREM —F - SIS EHAMDBER

THE AMALSEER NI TREERER R
BARR  AEEERTEEERPRANREE
Bar sl BREBETEE  UROREREASE
EMAIFHESRE AHARRAIEEE-

MEARINERE

B E2021F12A31HIEFE - —EAREBTM
RZHM B AR ZEAERRARERE(R
EECVIEXEE 3: i

Date of Deregistration Nature of proceeding

WEEMAE M

BFHEE

Cadiz Enterprises Limited
REREEARAR

No business operation

BETEE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by HK$128.3 million, or 20.1%,
from HK$638.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to HK$766.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The increase was primarily due to the increase in demand from
the customers of the Group for its products as a result of the
recovery from COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in the
increase in sales volume of the products of the Group.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales increased by HK$92.3 million, or
24.6%, from HK$375.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to HK$467.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.
primarily as a result of the increase in raw material costs for
the beverage solutions products, which in turn was mainly
caused by the
procurement price for the Group’s major raw materials.

The increase in the cost of sales was

increase in overall sales volume and

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit increased
by HK$35.9 million, or 13.6%, from HK$263.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to HK$299.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Group’s gross profit margin
decreased from 41.2% for the year ended 31 December 2020
to 39.0% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other Income and Gains, Net

The Group’s other income and gains, net decreased by
HK$13.3 million from HK$15.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to HK$2.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The decrease was primarily as a result of
absence on government subsidies received during the year
ended 31 December 2021 in relation to wages subsidies under
the Employment Support Scheme of the Anti-epidemic Fund
operated by the Hong Kong government and the decrease in
bank interest income due to the decrease in overall interest
rate on deposits.

B 7% [ B8

WA
NEBHUWA BB E2020F12A31B IHEEH
638.5H & /8 LI hN128.3F & /8 7L H20.1% &
B £2021F12A318 It F € M766.88 & B
TC o T EZ A ECOVID-19Z B IR 18 E 5
EPHEASEEMMFZREN  BEAKEE
mEy =0 o

& B A

AEBREEKANBEE2020F12A318 1L F
€ #9375.58 8 /ST 1192.3 8 & 5 7T 5124.6%
2HE2021F12A318 I F[E M467.8H & /&
Lo HERAENFEEANRNBERKREIRBE
MRV B A T EEHRBEHEE
EMEAEEFZREMEHRBES LA

EMNRERNE

R _EXFrat - ANEE A E N B E £20205F12
A31B L FEM263. 18 BB L m3s.0m 8%
JT 13.6% & & £2021F12A31H It F E K
299.0B BT o NEE M EF = HE £2020
F12A31B 1L FER41.2% R D EE E20214F
12H318 IE F E #39.0% °

Ht g AR = F 8
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12A31B Lt FEMI55EEBLH 138388
B EE E2021F12A8318 L FEM228 &
B AT ERNEE2021F12A31H IFF
EVHEKNBEEERNEENHEREES
MRMETE THEF SRR BEANBRSFE -
RITFEWABTFAROBEBAETBmEL -
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by
HK$11.4 million, or 10.6%, from HK$107.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to HK$118.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to increase in (i)
marketing and promotion expenses, and (i) logistics expenses,
which were generally in line with the increase in revenue.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by HK$2.9
million, or 3.9%, from HK$74.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to HK$77.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase was primarily a
increase in staff costs, which reflected the increase in bonus
provision in connection with the Group’s performance.

result of

Other Expenses, Net

The Group’s other expenses, net increased by HK$0.2 million,
or 5.3% from HK$3.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to HK$4.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The increase was primarily as a result of write-down of
inventories during the year ended 31 December 2021, which
partially offset by decrease in write-off of trade receivables.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by HK$0.5 million, or
35.7%, from HK$1.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to HK$0.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The decrease was primarily as a result of a reduction in the
average outstanding balance of interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense increased by HK$5.4 million,
or 36.0%, from HK$15.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to HK$20.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, mainly due to the increase in deferred tax
expenses. The Group’s effective income tax rate increased
from 16.3% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 20.3%
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Profit For The Year and Net Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the year
increased by HK$3.4 million, or 4.4%, from HK$76.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to HK$80.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The Group’s net profit margin
decreased from 12.0% for the year ended 31 December 2020
to 10.5% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Capital Expenditure and Commitments

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred
additions of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of HK$36.2 million (2020: HK$24.1 million) and HK$nil
(2020: 7.0 million), respectively. A substantial portion of the
Group’s capital expenditures were incurred in relation to the
capital expenditures on (i) purchase of coffee machines which
were leased to the Group’s customers, (i) production
machineries, and (ii) enhancement of facilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitment
of HK$9.6 million (2020: HK$4.3 million), mainly comprising the
related contracts of capital in production
machineries and enhancement of information technology
system and hardware.

expenditure

Borrowings
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total interest-bearing
bank borrowings of HK$3.2 million (2020: HK$12.1 million).

F R Fl R AR =

R £t - AR S B4 s F i 8 £2020F
12A31H L FEM76.88 & B T N348EB
TLEk4.4% £ B £2021F12 A31H [ F[E#)80.2
BEBIT - NEEMLF X HE E20205612 A
31 IEFER12.0%8 4 =& E2021F12 A 31
HIEFE/10.5% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net current assets were
HK$427.5 million, representing a increase of HK$26.3 million as
compared with net current assets of HK$401.2 million as at 31
December 2020. The increase in net current assets was mainly
attributable to increase in inventories, which was partially offset
by increase in trade payables and lease liabilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$272.1 million
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$276.8 million). The Board
is of the opinion that the financial position of the Group is
robust and the Group has sufficient resources to support its
operations and meet its foreseeable capital expenditures.

Capital Structure
As at 31 December 2021, the capital structure of the Group
comprised share capital and reserves.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

The Group did not have any concrete plan for material
investments or capital assets for the forthcoming year.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not have material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the vyear
ended 31 December 2021.

Contingent Liabilities
Saved as disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements
below, there were no other contingent liabilities.

Litigation Matter

In April 2020, the Group has filed a legal action against a third
party in the PRC for infringement of trademark and improper
competition and the final hearing was held in January 2022 by
the People’s Court of Shanghai Pudong New Area, the PRC
(the “Court”). Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Group
has not received the judgement from the Court yet on this
case.
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Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, on the basis of total interest-bearing
bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent, the Group’s gearing ratio was 0.5% (2020: 2.2%). The
decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to a reduction in the
outstanding balance of interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has transactional Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the unit’s functional currencies.
The majority of the Group’s foreign currency purchase
transactions are denominated in the United States dollars. On
the other hand, the sales and disbursements are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
management is closely monitoring foreign exchange exposure
of the Group. The Group will consider adopting a foreign
currency hedging policy for significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.

currency exposures.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rate. The Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

Credit Risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables arises
from default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
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Liquidity Risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. In
the management of liquidity risk, the Group has been
maintaining a cash pooling system where excess liquidity is
equalised internally through inter-group accounts. Depending
on the specific
funding for the Group’s operating companies may be sourced
directly from the Group’s bankers or indirectly through the
Company.

requirements of each funding agreement,

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING
The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date. After the full exercise of the
Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus) and after
deducting underwriting commissions and all related expenses,
the Net Proceeds amounted to HK$232.6 million.

As announced on 4 March 2021, in light of the change in
market and economic condition with the uncertainty in the
economy recovery in Southeast Asia, the Board has resolved to
revise the use of unutilised Net Proceeds from allocating the
Net Proceeds originally designated for expansion into Southeast
Asia to (i) strengthening business portfolio; and (i) general
working capital. The Board is of the view that the change in
use of Net Proceeds would allow the Group to utilise its
financial resources in a more beneficial and effective way.
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The original allocation of the Net Proceeds, the remaining
balance after the revised allocation of the Net Proceeds on
4 March 2021, the utilisation of the Net Proceeds during the
period from 4 March 2021 to 31 December 2021, the
unutilised Net Proceeds as at 31 December 2021 and the
expected timeline for the utilisation of the remaining Net
Proceeds are as follows:

FIEFREFENRESR  FMEREFER
2021F3A4RKIEE] D BLE M & 82 - 20214
3H4B £2021F12 8318 1L A N Fr 15 8%
A AB I  R2021F12 A31HB B ARE R FT
BREFEREABTHASRIEFEIES
RFRRAOT :

Utilisation
Remaining during the
balance after period from
revised 4 March 2021 to Unutilised
Original allocation on 31 December amount as at 31  Expected timeline for utilising the
allocation 4 March 2021 2021 December 2021  remaining unused Net Proceeds
F2021F
3R4AE
20214
020215 12A31H 020215
3R4R & IEHRE R 12A318M FABTREARERETFHEL
RED & PEENEER ERER AEAEE RERBR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
Strengthening business portfolio 93,044 29,304 (20,958) 8,346 Before 31 December 2022
MEEBES 12022612 A31H Al
Capital investment of machineries 46,522 - - — N/A
and equipment
BERFENERRE TER
Expansion into Southeast Asia 23,261 - - - N/A
BRERED TER
Product customisation and 23,261 14,486 (1,236) 13,250 Before 31 December 2023 (Note)
development
EnT@tkRzE 12023612 8318 A1 (M =E)
Support sales and marketing 23,261 - - - NA
XHEEREH TER
General working capital 23,261 7,929 (7,929 — Before 31 December 2021
—BEEES 20214124318 Al
Totiarl 232,610 51,719 (30,123) 21,596
B

Note: The launching plan of the tea machines has been further delayed
as the vendors could not deliver the machinery spare parts
which are sourced from European countries as scheduled due
to the COVID-19 pandemic. As such, the Group may not be
able to fully utilise the remaining Net Proceeds according to the
planned time frame as disclosed in the Prospectus and the
aforesaid announcement of Company issued on 4 March 2021.
In view of the uncertainties as a result of the on-going
COVID-19 pandemic, the Board has resolved to further extend
the expected timeline for utilising the remaining Net Proceeds
for product customisation and development to 31 December
2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has applied the Net
Proceeds according to plans as previously disclosed. The
Group will continue to assess the current market conditions
and monitor the utilisation of the remaining Net Proceeds. The
unutilised Net Proceeds have been placed as bank balances/
time deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong as at the date
of this Annual Report.
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Directors and Senior Management
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Wong Tat Tong (BE#E =), aged 68, has been a Director since
6 July 2000 and was redesignated as an executive Director on
4 September 2017. He is the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive
Officer”). He is primarily responsible for managing and
formulating overall strategic planning and development of the
Group. Mr. Wong has joined the Group for over 40 years since
May 1978. Mr. Wong is a director of several major operating
subsidiaries of the Group and also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Being responsible for the day-to-day management
and overall strategic planning and development of the Group,
Mr. Wong has been playing an important role in the Group’s
development and growth over the past 40 years.

Mr. Wong obtained a diploma in accounting from the Hong
Kong Baptist College (presently known as the Hong Kong
Baptist University). He is the Permanent Honorary President of
the Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association, the Permanent
Honorary President of The Hong Kong and Kowloon Provisions,
Wine & Spirit Dealers’ Association Limited, a member and a
director of the committee of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce and the representative of Tsit Wing Coffee
Company, Limited’s membership in The Hong Kong Chinese
Importers’ and Exporters’ Association.

Fan Yee Man (B#&#8), aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director on 4 September 2017. Ms. Fan is the group
chief financial officer and company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”). She joined the Group in 2012 and
is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial
position and accounting matters, information system, and
operation control of the Group. Ms. Fan is a director of several
major operating subsidiaries of the Group. She is also the
company secretary of all of the Group’s subsidiaries which are
incorporated in Hong Kong.
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Ms. Fan has over 15 years of experience in finance and
accounting management. Ms. Fan obtained a bachelor of
business administration (honours) in accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Fan is a member and a fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Certified Public Accountant certified by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Kam Chun Pong Bernard (£ #& #8), aged 65, was appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 4 May 2021. He is
the group operating officer — marketing and sales B2C. He
has been working for the Group for more than seven years and
is primarily responsible for the Group’s business strategy and
planning, coordinating and overseeing all marketing affairs of
the Group and the Group’s B2C business. Mr. Kam has more
than 30 years of experience in marketing, sales management,
and business development in both the fast-moving consumer
products and the food service industries. Mr. Kam obtained a
Higher Diploma in business studies from Hong Kong
Polytechnic (presently known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and a Diploma in Marketing from the Institute of
Marketing (United Kingdom). He also completed a ten-week
international general management program, namely Program for
Executive Development (P.E.D.) at the International Institute for
Management Development (IMD) in Switzerland. Mr. Kam is a
director of several major operating subsidiaries of the Group.

~
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Tang Kwai Chang (B¥& &), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Tang has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and audit risk management. Mr. Tang obtained a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist College
(presently known as Hong Kong Baptist University). He is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an honorary member of the Court of Hong Kong
Baptist University and a member of the disciplinary panel of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
convenor of Financial Review Panel of the Financial Reporting
Council. Mr. Tang was conferred with the Honorary University
Fellowship by the Hong Kong Baptist University in September
2017.

Mr. Tang is currently an independent non-executive director of
HKR Limited (stock code: 480), a company
engaging in property development and investment and FIT Hon
Teng Limited (stock code: 6088), a company engaging in the
development and production of interconnect solutions and
related products.

International

Wong Man Fai (E3X#8), aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong
has over 30 years of experience in the insurance industry. Mr.
Wong obtained his bachelor of science and master of business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of Starr International Insurance (Asia) Limited, a private
company engaging in insurance business, in October 2018.
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Lok Kung Chin Hardy (B #51E), aged 72, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2020.
He is a member of Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Lok graduated in Civil Engineering from the
University of Manchester Institute of Science & Technology. He
is a member of both the Institution of Civil Engineers and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Mr. Lok is the
Chairman of The Sun Company, Limited and has over 50 years
of experience in building and engineering construction work.
Mr. Lok has been an independent non-executive director of
Kowloon Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 00034)
since January 2002.

Save as disclosed herein, there are no other matters
concerning the Directors that need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders nor is there any other information
relating to the Directors that is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chiu Kar Kid (# X #), aged 52, is the general manager —
Mainland China. He joined the Group in December 2020 and is
primarily responsible for formulating the Group’s production
and project policies and strategies in the PRC. He has over 25
years of experience in engineering, plant and general
management. Prior to joining the Group, he served as the
general manager of Amoral Metal Production Company, Limited
from March 2011 to May 2012. He worked at Dongguan Rex
Packaging Company Limited from May 2012 to November
2020, with his last position as China Country Head, General
Manager. He received a master degree of science in
engineering business management from The University of
Warwick in 1999, a master degree of business administration in
strategic marketing from The University of Hull in 2005 and a
master degree of science in engineering research studies from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2021.

Cheung Chi Hang Alan ((R&1H), aged 48, is the group
operating officer — sales. He joined the Group in July 2021.
He is primarily responsible for formulating and overseeing
overall sales strategies and activities in B2B market in Hong
Kong and Macau. He has over 20 years of experience in sales
and marketing in food service. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked at Ecolab Limited from April 1999 to July 2021, with
his last position as Field Director, Institutional, Hong Kong and
Mainland China. He received a bachelor degree of science in
chemical technology from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 1995 and a professional diploma in marketing
management from the Hong Kong Management Association in
1998.
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Hau Ka Wai ({X &% £), aged 44, is the group operating officer
— human resources & administration. She joined the Group
from 2007 to 2017 and recently rejoined in 2020, and
oversees the human resources and administration department.
She is mainly responsible for corporate social responsibility and
overall human resources strategy planning. Ms. Hau has over
20 years of experience in human resources. Ms. Hau obtained
a Bachelor of Business from Holmes Institute.

Yeung Man Sum Andrew (43 #%%), aged 51, is the China
market general manager — Omni Channel. He joined the
Group in February 2022 and is primarily responsible for
formulating sales strategies and activities in Mainland China. He
has over 25 years of experience in sales and marketing in
consumer goods industry in the PRC market. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked at A.S. Watson & Company, Limited
from March 2016 to February 2019, with his last position as
General Manager — Sales Operations. He worked as Vice
President at Lee Kam Kee (China) Trading Limited Shanghai
Office from April 2020 to November 2021. He received a
bachelor degree of business administration in The University of
Hong Kong in 1992 and obtained a master degree of business
administration in the Beijing International MBA at Peking
University in 2004.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Fan Yee Man (###8), aged 41, was appointed as the
Company Secretary effected on 4 May 2021. Save for her
duties as an executive Director as disclosed above, she is also
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the Board
and the Board committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, Shareholders and senior
management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company is firmly committed to a high level of corporate
governance and adherence to the governance principles and
practices emphasising transparency, independence,
accountability, responsibility and fairness. These principles and
practices are reviewed and revised regularly as appropriate to
reflect the ever changing regulatory requirements and corporate
governance development. The Board believes that the high
standards of corporate governance is the essential core for
sustaining the Group’s long term performance and value
creation for our Shareholders, the investing public and the
other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December
2021, complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code (to the extent such provisions are applicable), except for
code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-numbered as C.2.1
since 1 January 2022) which states that the roles of chairman
and chief executives should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Related details are set out in
the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees to
manage and oversee the specified affairs of the Company. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management power of the
Company to the executive Directors and senior management of
the Company. However, full delegation is not allowed for some
specific matters under the Companies Ordinance, the Listing
Rules, the CG Code or other regulatory requirements, and the
final decisions on those specific matters are required to be
taken by the whole board.

The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to
creating value for our Shareholders. The Board is responsible
for developing the strategic directions for the Company and
continuous monitoring of the performance of the general
management of the Company. Strategic planning is one of the
Board’s important functions for aligning mission and vision and
a lot of focus and attention have been devoted to such a plan.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board has performed above duties during the year ended
31 December 2021.

28 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2021

Exeg
ERGROIUTABODEEAEET

1. HERBRADAEDLEEHOKEM
1B iR R

2. BRENVNEREFHESAEEENEIIR
HEEERRR

3. 7fMJfDE§;’%$’AﬁT§§?ﬁE5£1§IJ&%i‘ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂl
REAER

4. BIE  BRMERBRTER  URERAR
BEEEBENAATMWE) Rk

5, BEARQRAEBROLEESTAMETR
B8R4 T b EERARENTE -

HE2021F12A31HIEFE  E=22EET L



= D L

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

A

TEEERERE(HF)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board composition

Currently, our Board comprises six directors, including three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The current composition of our Board is as follows:

Membership of board

BEEg(E)

EEeREAR

Bl EEEHANBEFAK  BRE=ZRT
EER-RBUNTES -ESSHREK
BT

Name of Director committee(s) EEHE EEEeZEERE

Executive Directors: HITESE -

Mr. WONG Tat Tong Chairman of nomination committee HEELAE E ZEEGXF
(Chairman & Chief Member of remuneration (FERITHABE) FMEEEKE
Executive Officer) committee

Ms. FAN Yee Man B guNE

Mr. KAM Chun Pong IR E A
Bernard

Independent non-executive Directors: BUIHHITEE -

Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Chairman of audit committee HEZ % ERZEEQ®EF

Member of remuneration FTMEZEEKE
committee

Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of audit committee T XESLAE BEZEZEENKE

Chairman of remuneration FTMEEEER
committee
Member of nomination committee RBEZEENKE

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Member of audit committee BEARIERAE BEZLZEENKE
Hardy Member of nomination committee REZLZEBEEKE

The designation, position and brief biographical information of & & EF7B 2 BT - BRAL M 85 7 DA K2 1% itk i sk

each Director, together with the relationship amongst each
other, senior management of the Company or substantial or
controlling Shareholder are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section in this Annual Report. In addition, a list
containing the names of the Directors and their roles and
functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company at www.twcoffee.com.

The independent non-executive Directors represent half of the
Board which exceeds the Listing Rules requirement for one-
third. In compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Board has appointed an independent non-executive Director
with appropriate professional qualifications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board composition (Continued)

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board, through the Nomination Committee, has assessed and
considered that all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective delivery of the Board functions.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in May 2018 and it has been reviewed by
the Board on a regular basis. The Board Diversity Policy has
been published on the Company’s website.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, when reviewing the
composition of the Board and considering the nomination of
new Directors, the Nomination Committee will, by referring to
the business model of the Group and specific needs from time

to time, take into account a number of factors, including
gender, age, cultural and educational background or
professional experience, skills, regional and industry

experience, background, race and other qualities, etc.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (Continued)

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board by maintaining the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognising and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. Board appointments will continue to
be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The following chart shows the diversity profile of the
Board as at 31 December 2021:

BEEEeREZTIL(E)
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Board Diversity Profile
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 (which has been re-
numbered to C.2.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Wong Tat Tong (“Mr. Wong”) is currently the chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, responsible for
formulating the overall business development strategy and
planning of the Group. Wong having been
responsible for the overall management of the Group since
1978, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Wong taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. The Board considers
that the balance of power and authority, accountability and
independent decision-making under the present arrangement
will not be impaired because of the diverse background and
experience of the three independent non-executive Directors.
Further, the Audit Committee has free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditor and independent professional
advisers when it considers necessary. Therefore, the Board
considers that the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance. Except for the
deviation from the said CG Code Provision A.2.1, the Group’s
corporate governance practices have complied with the CG
Code (to the extent such provisions are applicable) during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

In view of Mr.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS
The Board met seven times, five of which were held in person
and the remaining two via teleconference, in the financial year

of 2021. Various matters such as overall business plans,
financial and operating performance of the Group, audit
planning, annual budget, the financial reports, ESG

developments and corporate governance related policies and
practices for the Group have been discussed,
approved (where applicable) during the meetings. Notice of at
least 14 days was given to all Directors for regular Board
meetings in order to give them an opportunity to attend. For
other Board meetings, notice was given in a reasonable time in
advance.

reviewed and
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS (Continued)

All' Directors have full and timely access to all
information in relation to the Company. There are established
procedures for Directors to seek independent professional
advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities,
where appropriate, at the Company’s expenses.

relevant

During the year, Directors have made active participation in the
Board meetings and Board committees meetings.

The minutes of the Board meetings and all other committee
meetings recorded the matters considered by the Board or the
committees (as the case may be) in sufficient details. All the
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
upon prior appointment for inspection by any Directors,
auditors or any relevant eligible parties who are entitled to have
access to such information.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an
Audit Committee and a Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference.

EEgREF(A)
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EEZEE
BERETCRUFHERY BREERR
REZEG SABEZHRERE-

Board of Directors

S

Audit Committee
EBZER

Remuneration Committee

HIZBE g

Nomination Committee

%E% =1 El

(2 out of 3 are independent non-executive Directors)

(ZEFHERBULINTEE)

(all independent non-executive Directors with (2 out of 3 are independent non-executive Directors)
an independent non-executive director with

(ZEFHE BB LN TEE)

appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of

the Listing Rules)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) BEEZXE E e (&)
Remuneration Committee FMEES
Membership of Remuneration
Name of Director Committee EEng FHEEERE
Executive Director: HITEF -
Mr. WONG Tat Tong Member of Remuneration mEEEAE FMEZEEKE
(Chairman & Chief Committee (EERITHAEH)
Executive Officer)
Independent non-executive Directors: BUHHITEE -
Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Member of Remuneration HEZEE FMEZEEKE
Committee
Mr. WONG Man Fai Chairman of Remuneration TXEEAE FMEEEERE
Committee

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including the advice of independent
professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible to consider
and approve the remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management of the Group, including salaries, benefits in
kind and bonuses; bonus schemes and other long-term
incentive schemes, including share option and other plans.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings, three of
which were held in-person and the remaining one via
teleconference, in the financial year of 2021. Each member’s
attendance record during the year is shown on page 41 of this
Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1F

TEER®RSE (HF)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2021

Reviewed the remuneration policies of the Group, namely
KPI Policy, Performance Management Policy, Salary
Review Policy and Annual Performance Policy;

Reviewed the Directors’ fee for the year ended 31
December 2021;

Reviewed the updated organization chart of the Group;

Reviewed the remuneration package of the key
management of the Group; and

Reviewed the bonus scheme of the Group.

The members of the Remuneration Committee have discussed

the

above matters during the meetings and made

recommendations to the Board for approval.

EEZES(H)
FMEEE (&)
RREB20210 B FEZTH B LT IEHE

s MEUAKEZHMEE  BEREN
BR - RINEIEBR - HFrm T R
FRERBBR

. ®ET#E E2021FE12A831B IFEE 28
W

s RIAKEzEHMABEEE

tc
K

%

e RIUAKBEEBREEABZHFMIR:

&

s MEAARKEZILAEE -

FHEZEe v KECRESERN LA EER

I (R 2 58 F o S 2 i DA A OfE ©

TR 5l BRERERERAA

35



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

tREBEHRE (&)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) BEEZEE(E)

Audit Committee EREZEEE

Name of Director Membership of Audit Committee @EZ#E EREEERE

Independent non-executive Directors: BB ITESE -

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang ~ Chairman of Audit Committee HEZE4E BERLZERERE

Mr. Wong Man Fai Member of Audit Committee TXEEAE EZLZBEENKE

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Member of Audit Committee BESIE KA EZLZEENKE
Hardy

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on BH#ZEZE € 7 BESEC T2 0B < LA

the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The A&l Z 4k o ’f%?%@ ERHAEZER &

Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including HEBYEERARZER(WMFEE)  UEBITHE

the advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to & °

discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and their
audit fees; meeting with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit; reviewing the Company’s
financial statements and interim and annual reports before they
are submitted to the Board; discussing problems and
reservations arising from the interim review and final audit, and
any other matters the external auditor may wish to discuss, and
reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter and
management’s response; considering any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the reports and
accounts and giving due consideration to any matters that have
been raised by the Company’s external auditor and compliance
officer (if any); reviewing the internal audit programs and to
ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditor,
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; discussing the risk management and
internal control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;
reviewing arrangements the employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company; and acting
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

A

TEEERERE(HF)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Board has delegated the risk management responsibilities
to the Audit Committee to oversee and review the adequacy
and effectiveness of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management procedures that
have been in place.

The Audit Committee met three times, all in-person, in the
financial year of 2021. Each member’s attendance record
during the year is shown on page 41 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2021

° Reviewed the 2021 preliminary interim results
2021 interim financial report; 2020
preliminary annual results announcement and annual
statements with management and external

auditor, and recommended their adoption by the Board;

announcement;
financial
° Reviewed the reports from internal audit department their
work in relation to the Company’s internal control systems

and approved the 2021 internal audit plan;

° Reviewed the Dividend Policy and made recommendations
to the Board for consideration;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1F

TEER®RSE (HF)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2021 (Continued)

38

Met with the external auditor to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit work;

Reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

Reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-
audit services provided by the external auditor, together
with its respective fees;

Reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit
function and compliance with the related CG Code;

Reviewed the business budget for the financial year of
2022,

Reviewed the policies of the Group over trade receivables
and discussed about the impact of the legal proceedings
in which the Group was involved on the financials and
operation of the Group; and

Held private session with external auditor in the absence

of executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEEREE (A)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZE a g(#E)
Nomination Committee REZES

Membership of Nomination

Name of Director Committee EEgR REZEEHE

Executive Director: HITEE !

Mr. Wong Tat Tong Chairman of Nomination mEEEA RELZEGERE
(Chairman & Chief Committee (EEFITHAEH)
Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors: BUIHHITEE

Mr. Wong Man Fai Member of Nomination Committee T xELEAE REZLZBEEGNE

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Member of Nomination Committee BEARIERAE RELZEEKE
Hardy
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

A

TEERRE (&)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent professional firms, if
necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee also reviews the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender and age) of the Board; Director’'s time
commitment; policies in relation to nomination of Director and
Board diversity. The Committee would identify and determine
the measurable objectives for achieving board diversity and
monitor any progress made in achieving such measurable
objectives. The Committee would also recommend to the
Board on appointment or reappointment of and succession
planning for Director and Chief Executive Officer.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character, qualifications, experience, independence
and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve board diversity,
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

where

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in-person in the
financial year of 2021. Each member’s attendance record
during the year is shown on page 41 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the financial year

of 2021

° Reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the mix of skills, knowledge, professional qualification and
experience of the Directors) of the Board;

° Reviewed the execution effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy and made recommendations to the Board for

approval;

° Assessed and confirmed the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors; and

° Reviewed and recommended the appointment and rotation
of Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TRERKRSE (F)

EEZES(H)
BEZEES (&)
RREB20218 B FEZTHK B T ERIE ()

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2021 (Continued)

Attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings, MR2021BIKFEE  SEEREEL L - F M
Remuneration Committee meetings, Audit Committee meetings, ZE& &% BX L8 ET’SE% REZEBEGR
Nomination Committee meetings and general meeting(s) during BREA S &= 2 HELERIWOT ¢
the financial year of 2021 are as follows:
Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend
HE/ BHEERLESERY
Overall
Remuneration Audit Nomination General Attendance
Board Committee Committee Committee meeting Rate
Name ®E g HMZzEEE EHZEE REZEE BRRAE EBELER
Independent non-executive @~ BIFHTEE
Directors
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang MEYEE 7 4/4 339 NATER 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong Man Fai FXERE 77 4/40 3/3 1/1 1/1 100%
Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy BEARERE 77 N/AZ i A 3/3 11 11 100%
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Tat Tong HEERA 7/79 4/4 3/30 1/16@ 1/1 100%
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith BRE5E 1/10 110 1/10 1/10 il 100%
(resignation effected on (BB 20216
4 May 2021) 5A48 £%)
Ms. Fan Yee Man BagNME 7/70 3/30 3/300  N/ATEF 1 100%
(appointment of company (RAIMERNTBR
secretary effected on 4 May 20214F584H ’I@l)
2021)
Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bemard SRABEAE 6/6 N/AT i N/AT i F N/AT 3 F N/AZR i A 100%
(appointment effected on 4 (R ER202145
May 2021) 5A48 £%)
Average Attendance of the EZEEREFHHER 100%
Board Members
ZEFFW BREERERERAT 41



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

PO

TEERRE (HF)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2021 (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Chairman of the Board

(b)  Secretary of the Board/Committee

(@] Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
(d)  Chairman of the Audit Committee

(e)  Chairman of the Nomination Committee

M) Attendance by Invitation

During the year under review, the chairman of the Board also
met with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other executive Directors and senior management
of the Company.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by Shareholders in a general meeting.
Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as Director
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the
Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures by Shareholders
are published on the website of the Company. Any Director
who is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next General
Meeting.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s
Bye-laws, all the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term of not more than
three years under their letters of appointment. Pursuant to the
Company’s current Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and one-third (or the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) of Directors shall retire from office
every year at the Company’s annual general meeting.

The letters of appointment of Mr. Tang Kwai Chang and Mr.
Wong Man Fai had been renewed for another term of three
years commencing from 11 May 2021 on the same terms of
conditions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TtEERERE (F)

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

On appointment, new Directors will also be given an induction
program kit advising them of their responsibilities and duties as
Directors under various regulatory requirements and the Board
procedures, including the terms of reference of the Board
Committees. Such Directors will be provided with relevant
guidelines including but not limited to “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry, “Guidelines for
Directors” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Directors as
guidelines on the general principles of duties of directors,
Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors issued by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors (if applicable), Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission and Guidance for Boards and Directors
issued by the Stock Exchange.

The Company Secretary regularly provides to Directors
information about the enrollment of external training courses
and seminars as well as legal alerts and articles which are
relevant for Directors to keep up-to-date on any legislative,
regulatory and corporate governance requirements and with
professional practices in a dynamic business world. The
program would help refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills in
relation to their performance of the roles, functions and duties
of directors of a listed company.

The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to senior management of the
Company in this highly competitive consumer product market.
Members of the senior management are encouraged to
participate in various CPD programs at the expense of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

A

TEERRE (&)

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors
participated in appropriate CPD activities by attending
training(s) and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

The Directors have provided their training records for the
financial year 2021.

Reading regulatory

EEHERFEEXRR(F)

HE2021F12A31BILFERN IEEEESE

BB, AEEERARARERRES
BEMEENMH2HEEENHEEERRE
EE e

EECRMH02ANFH B FERIF IR -

Attending professional
briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant
to directors’ duties,
regulatory updates

Reading materials and business

updates and relating to business HEEBESRE
directors’ duties and industry EEREEHR
MEEERTE MEEBELER EBENEERS
EHERR TENER He mHg €8
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BERLAE v v
Ms. Fan Yee Man B 25 g/ R v v
Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard SIRA K E v v
Independent non-executive Directors UHHBTES
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang HET AL v v
Mr. Wong Man Fai IxXEELE v v
Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy BEARE KL V v
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS EEEMT
Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the EZHHEHAQNAPERRAEST EET
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware THEEEME X TR Z S 401 5 Al 8

of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are prepared on a
going-concern basis. All the new accounting standards and
policies adopted by the Company have been thoroughly
discussed and approved at the Audit Committee before
adoption by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEER®RSE (HF)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

The Group has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the
“Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required standards
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Code is also applicable
to the specified group of employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information. Specific enquiries were
made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they
have provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021. Directors
have also disclosed to the Company their interests as director
and other office in other public companies and organisation in
a timely manner, and have regularly reported to the Company
Secretary on any subsequent changes.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to review the Board’s
effectiveness and to identify areas for improvements. The
chairman of the Board has also been evaluated on whether he
has adequately and effectively performed his roles and fulfilled
his responsibilities as the chairman of the Board. Such
evaluation is usually conducted once a year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the Board
and the Board Committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, Shareholders and senior
management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEER®RSE (HF)

COMPANY SECRETARY (Continued)

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to
the chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and facilitating the
professional development programme and induction
programme of Directors. All members of the Board have
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

Our executive Director, Ms. Fan Yee Man is the Company
Secretary of the Company. Please refer to “Director and Senior
Management” section for her biographical information.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control system consists of a set of rules, policies

and procedures and organizational structures which aims to:

— ensure the corporate strategies are properly implemented;

— achieve effective and efficient corporate processes;

— safeguard the value of corporate assets;

— ensure the reliability and integrity of accounting and
management data; and

— ensure the operations comply with all existing rules, policies
and regulations.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal audit department plays a critical role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company.

Internal audit department acts as an independent role to
perform reviews over the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems. The
department also assesses the risks inherent in particular
business or functional areas, including fraud or corruption, and
conducts reviews or audits to provide reasonable assurance
that adequate governance and controls are in place to address
such risks.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TtEERERE (F)

INTERNAL AUDIT (Continued)

Internal audit department reports to the Audit Committee and
administratively to chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer. It was granted with the authority of unrestricted access
to all aspects of the Company’s activities and internal controls.
This helps the audit department to provide an
independent and objective assurance to the Audit Committee
on whether the control environments within the Company are
adequate.

internal

Internal audit department carries out independent review of key
business processes and controls in accordance with its annual
audit plan reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. The
audit plan is prepared using a risk assessment
methodology and taking into account the Company structure,
organisational change, overall materiality of each business unit,
management’s concern, nature and complexity of operation
and operating environment. The risk assessment methodology
assists in identifying business risks and determining audit
frequencies. Internal audit department schedules its resources
focusing on high risk areas.

annual

The scope of work performed by internal audit department
includes review of entity wide controls, business process
control review, project based operational audit
compliance review and information technology system review. In
particular, business process
reporting controls and control testing would be performed on
assessing the operating effectiveness. Business process review
is performed on a continuous basis and aim to cover all major
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries on a cyclical
basis. Project based operation audit review focuses on specific
areas with high perceived risks and management concerns.
Internal audit department also conducts special review,
investigations, consulting and advisory services related to
corporate governance and controls as required by
management or the Audit Committee.

review,

review focuses on financial

Results of audit reviews are compiled in internal audit reports
and sent to senior management of the Company for process
improvement and rectification on a timely basis. Remediation
actions have been developed collaboratively by the
management and operational teams to rectify the control
weaknesses identified. All critical audit findings and control
weaknesses are summarised and presented to the Audit
Committee for their knowledge and/or attention.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

tREBEHRE (&)

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
The risk governance structure and the roles and responsibilities
of each layer are listed below:

Board/Audit Committee ¢ Take the overall responsibility for risk management
e Establish the structure for risk management
e Approve operational risk policy and risk management
procedures
e Understand and review group most significant risks
¢ Determine strategic approach to risk and set risk appetite

e Consider major incident findings and management
response

Risk management & ¢ Develop and update the risk management policy
operation control and risk register
team (“RMOC”) e Co-ordinate the risk management and internal
control activities
e Co-ordinate committees, contingency and
recovery plan
e Review major investigation findings on incidents
e  Compile risk information and prepare reports for
the Board/Audit Committee

Internal audit e Develop a risk-based internal audit programme
e Audit the risk processes across the organisation
e Receive and provide assurance on risk
management
e Report on the efficiency and effectiveness of
internal control

Department heads e Build risk aware culture within the depts
e Agree risk management performance targets
e Ensure implementation of risk improvement
recommendations
e |dentify and report changed circumstances/risks
Individual employees

Spokespersons e Consider materiality of information disclosed to
external parties
e Delivery disclosed information to relevant
stakeholders

Individual employees ¢ Understand, accept and implement risk
management process
e Report inefficient, unnecessary or unworkable
controls
e Report loss events and near miss incidents
e Co-operate with management on incident
investigations
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TRERKRSE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Our risk management process is embedded

operations,

financial

in our daily

activities, compliance, strategy

development and business planning, investment decision and
external factors. The process are as follows:

Process Risk o
Identification

Risk Analysis o
L]
L]
Risk Evaluation o
L]
L]
Risk Treatment o

Identify the risks through department heads and
RMOC

Identify the risks that have a potential to
negatively affect the business strategic plan of
the Group

Consider the materiality of the impact of the risk
Access the relevancy to the business strategic
plan and the level of potential impact of the
delivery of the business strategic plan

Conduct a quantity measurement on its inherent
risk level, residual risk level and target risk level
Assess the risk severity according to its level of
consequence and the likelihood of the risk event
becoming actual event

Determine the severity with reference to the
historical data, reference from the industry and
own judgment

Identify the risks and assess the options available
to accept, mitigate or avoid the risks

Decide the appropriate response in terms of its
effectiveness

Establish the priorities in responding the risks

Selecting the risk treatment options

Preparing and implementing risk treatment plans
RMOC shall make a report to the senior
management for reporting the latest risk
landscape on a regular basis
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

tREBEHRE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

° Risk Register
RMOC provides a risk register template for systematic
and consistent presentation of identified risks. For each
risk, there is a separate page which displays the details of
the risk, the risk severity presented in the format of risk
assessment matrix, the internal controls/mitigation
measures and the actions for improving the risk
mitigation.

° Control Self-Assessment (“CSA”)
The Group adopts the CSA process to provide
reasonable assurance that risks are properly managed
and business objectives can be met. It also promotes risk
awareness and the importance of up-keeping effective
internal controls.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS EFFECTIVENESS
Internal audit department has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies for
the financial year of 2021. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the findings and impartial opinion from the audit
department on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

internal

The Board, with confirmation from the management, considered
the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate to the Group’s needs in its current business
environment and in terms of practicability for the year ended
31 December 2021. No significant areas of concern that might
affect the financial, operational and compliance issues and risk
management functions of the Company were identified. The
scope of this review also covered the adequacy of resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions and
their training and budget.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TtEERERE (F)

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Company
is aware of the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules
and SFO and the overriding principle that inside information
should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable after
such information comes to our attention unless it falls within
any of the Safe Harbours provisions under the SFO. The
Company has had a system in place with established policies
and procedures for complying with the inside information
disclosure requirements under the regulatory regime. Every
Directors have been provided with the
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company has included in its code of
conduct and staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information.

“Guidelines on

REMUNERATION FOR SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
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The emoluments of the senior management by bands for the #{Z2021F12A318ILFE  afREEENF
year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows: & E T -
Number of individuals
A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0005 7T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T =1,500,0007% 7T 1
EXTERNAL AUDITOR SMEE % B AP

Ernst & Young has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company by Shareholders at the last annual general
meeting. An amount of HK$2.0 million was charged for the year
ended 31 December 2021 for statutory audits for the Company
and subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit services
provided by Ernst & Young for the Company and subsidiaries
during the year was HKO0.6 million, mainly comprised (i) interim
review of the condensed consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021; (i)
provision of advisory services for the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021; and (iii) tax compliance and advisory services.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEER®RSE (HF)

EXTERNAL AUDITOR (Continued)

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
2021
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 69 to 76.

financial statements are set out in the section of

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for requisitioning a special general
meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the Company
may, by written requisition to the board or the Company
Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, require the Directors to call a special
general meeting for the transaction of business specified in the
requisition. The requisition must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda (the “Registered Office”) for
the attention of the Company Secretary of the Company. To
ensure that the requisition is received by the Company at the
earliest opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition should
also be deposited at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Flats F-J, 11th Floor, Block 1, Kwai Tak
Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong (the “Head Office”) for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The
requisition must be deposited at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Company Secretary. To ensure that the
requisition is received by the Company at the earliest
opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition should also be
deposited at the Head Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERKRSE (F)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a
Director at General Meeting

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director at a general meeting is available for
viewing at the Company’s website at www.twcoffee.com.

Shareholders can also refer to the detailed requirements and
procedures as set forth
Companies Act and the Company’s Bye-laws when making any
requisitions or proposals for transaction at the general meetings
of the Company.

in the relevant sections of the

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable
for ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard,
timely communication with our Shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders’ Communication
Policy to ensure that Shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the Company’s information and
reviewed the said Policy on a regular basis. The Shareholders’
Communication Policy is posted on the Company’s website.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.twcoffee.com)
to keep Shareholders and the investing public posted of the
Company’s latest business developments, final and interim
results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements, corporate governance policies and practices
and other relevant shareholder information.

RERER (Z)
RBRERAELEZ—NVALTSREEZZRE
F

EEEREAS TRBEBEFALBEENE
12 AN A B 48 i www.tweoffee.com A & B o

BREARABRRASG LRAEEMBERER
2 - MAI 2R RRERAR AR QAR
EREHAENFARTE -

EEMEXH
HE2021F12A31HILFE  RRARZEREX
40 = B o

BRREREEZEE

BPBERENERAEERAEDRIFERER
PR R Z B MR ERREEEBRE

EFgR®KA—DEXZBREBEABER - A
RICRBERERS - AT RERHEFSARFZE
Al - I ER A AT BT AR o BRRBABERE T
BERRA AU -

AN AR A A B4 Ik (www.tweoffee.com) (]
BRERABEREEERARNASTEBRER
MR FERPHEELM MBERE 2
H OPEEARRLEHAUREMHEBRRE
oo

TR 5l BRERERERAA 53


www.twcoffee.com

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TRERKRSE (F)

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS EHERREBREEZEZEE(Z)

AND INVESTORS (Continued)

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue, ARFABRRBAFAGZER(EEDASEE
including the appointment and re-election of Directors will be ZH(BEZTNERER)REBIURZE
proposed by the chairman at the annual general meeting (the MABARZREUBRGEZEARNETRR  T/F
“Chairman”) of the Company and will be voted on by poll. The KR RBFREHAREFEABREETRAE
detailed procedures of conducting a poll will be explained by Z27REF @ BBRERERABRBEIET  BRHOKE
the Chairman at the commencement of the annual general #ERERBERBEFASLEREZEBEH &
meeting to ensure that Shareholders are familiar with such  ZN2 &) 2 #9 uh T & o

procedures. The poll results will be posted on the websites of

the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day

following the annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company. The Company has established a principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Flats F-J, 11th Floor, Block 1, Kwai
Tak Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong and has been registered as a non-
Hong Kong company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently, the
Company, through its subsidiaries, primarily engages in (i)
processing and distribution of coffee, tea and related
complementary products; (i) processing and distribution of
frozen food; and (i) sale and rental of coffee and tea
machines.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Group during the
financial year is set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and important events affecting the Group
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2021 are
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 9 to 21 of this Annual Report. The Group
has adopted a risk governance structure and established a set
of risk management processes which is embedded in our daily
operation and management. For details, please refer to section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 48 to 50.
Further, a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group can be found in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 8 of this Annual Report.
These discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHE(EF)

SHARE CAPITAL
The movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s distributable
premium, contributed surplus and retained profits. As at 31
December 2021, the Company had distributable reserves of
HK$383.2 million. in the Company’s reserves
during the year in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

reserves comprise the share

Movements
is set out

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK3.50 cents per ordinary share (2020: HK4.00 cents) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021.

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”) to be held on Thursday, 28 April 2022.
Upon Shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable on or before Tuesday,
24 May 2022 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 5 May
2022.

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 11 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE (H)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 25 April 2022 to Thursday, 28 April 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 22 April 2022.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the
Shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend, if
approved, the register of members of the Company will be
closed on Thursday, 5 May 2022, no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered on that day. In order to be eligible
to receive the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares of
the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 4 May 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 2021, neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the period from 1
January 2021 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

December
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHE(EF)

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The controlling Shareholders have confirmed to the Company of
his/its compliance with the deed of non-competition dated 15
December 2017 during the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors are
not aware of any business or interest of the controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Tat Tong
Ms. Fan Yee Man
Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard
(appointment effected on 4 May 2021)
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith (resignation effected on 4 May 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang

Mr. Wong Man Fai

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is satisfied that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent as defined under the Listing Rules.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Ms. Fan Yee Man and Mr. Tang Kwai Chang will retire from
their offices as Director at the AGM to be held on Thursday,
28 April 2022.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 26
of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE (H)

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information of the Directors are as follows:

Mr. Wong ceased to be director of Cadiz Enterprises Limited,
which was deregistered on 25 June 2021.

Ms. Fan Yee Man was appointed as a director of Dongguan
Tsit Wing Food Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, on 8
April 2021 and the company secretary of the Company with
effect from 4 May 2021.

Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard was appointed as an executive
director and an authorised representative of the Company with
effect from 4 May 2021. Mr. Kam was also appointed as a
director of Tsit Wing (China) Enterprises Company Limited, Tsit
Wing (Hong Kong) Company Limited and Tsit Wing Beverage
Machine Company Limited with effect from 16 March 2021.

Mr. Wu Kam On Keith resigned as an executive director, the
company secretary and an authorised representative of the
Company with effect from 4 May 2021. Mr. Wu also ceased to
be a director of subsidiaries of the Company during the year.

For changes in remuneration of each of the executive Directors,
please refer to Note 8(b) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the Directors proposed for re-election or appointment
at the AGM has entered into a service contract with the Group
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration shall be determined based on
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee, while also
makes reference to the complexity of the Director’'s work,
workload, responsibilities, as the Company’s
remuneration policies. Details of the Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest-paid individuals of the Group are set out in
Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHE(EF)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the directors and chief executives
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in the Shares of the Company

(a)

%EFE%H&@&EB@H&@EE&

MR2021F12A31H » ARAIZREEREETH
AEBRBEEHE ARARRE K& HE [ AE B
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wmAKE) HRIBEH R E GO EXVEE
352K EEE BN ARRIRIBZIEFMARTE
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(@ RAEARARGHEFR

Number of underlying
Shares comprised in
options granted under

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of the Pre-IPO Share as at
Shares held Option Scheme 31 December 2021
Name of Executive Director ~ Nature of Interest (Note 1) (Note 2) Total (Note 3)
HBBEERARREN
BRETHRLNBR 20215128318
FERGBE EARNEEROHE WERENED L
HITESHS EEME (B zE1) (W552) st GER)
Mr. Wong Tat Tong Interest in controlled 514,667,312 N/A 514,667,312 71.41%
(“Mr. Wong”) (Note 4) corporation; beneficial TR
owner
HEEAE((ERED(Y) RBEEER:
ERBBA
Ms. Fan Yee Man Beneficial owner 918,000 - 918,000 0.13%
B g/NME ERBEA
Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard Beneficial owner 184,000 - 184,000 0.03%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE (H)

(b)

Notes:

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company were long positions. None of the
Directors held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December
2021.

All these interests held by such Directors were underlying
shares in respect of share options granted to them on 15
December 2017 pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, further details of which are set out in Note 27 to
the financial statements.

Based on the Company’s issued share capital of
720,731,512 shares as at 31 December 2021.

Mr. Wong directly holds the 51% of issued share capital of
Hero Valour Limited which holds approximate 71.41% of
the total issued share capital of the Company. Hero Valour
Limited is joint-owned by Mr. Wong and Ms. Li Ying Wah
Irene, the spouse of Mr. Wong. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong
and Ms. Li are deemed to be interested in 514,667,312
shares.

Long position in the Shares of associated
corporations of the Company
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51% B 21T A MmHero Valour Limited
BEARARADZETRALELD
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

Nature of Name of associated ordinary as at

Name of Director interest corporation shares held 31 December 2021

"20215F12H831H

EEnE EEME B EEERB ik H# A WERBAEIS L

Mr. Wong Beneficial owner Hero Valour Limited 51 51.00%
|mEA EnEAA Hero Valour Limited

B EXXHBEEI  R2021F128318 » KA F
BEERFBTHRAEMER KRB S E LM
BB EAE(TERLFESFKPEKRMEXVE) K
B REEROBEEREESFRBEKRDZE
326 AR RBFTEFEECMAZEMRER X
KE - MERBEZESTRIZITME AR K
RETH R RE °

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHE(EF)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
each of the persons, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital, as recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

%E&%Mﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁaﬂiﬁﬂh Y R
mw
2021124318 » S INA R B R IR 7% 75 & 2B
EIEPIE3B6IETFENERMAIR U TAL
(RARIEETREBZTHABRIN RAEARQF
B REBARNDAEERERRNAR BT
PR AN5% Sk LA EiE S ROK A

Number of ordinary shares
(long position)
ZTEREE (FR)
Approximate %
Directly of total issued

beneficially share

Name of Shareholder owned (Note 3)

HERITROA

MO BE DL

BRER %A ERERES (M$7E3)

Hero Valour Limited (Note 1) (Fff&F1) 514,667,312 71.41%
Ms. Li Ying Wah Irene (“Ms. Li") (Note 2)

FRELT ([FLt])(FF2) 514,667,312 71.41%

Notes:

1. Hero Valour Limited is joint-owned by Mr. Wong and Ms. Li, the
spouse of Mr. Wong.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong and Ms. Li are deemed to be interested
in 514,667,312 shares.

3. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 720,731,512
shares as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no
person, other than the executive Directors, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are disclosed
in Note 27 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of
this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director or his/her respective close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had a material interest, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business that competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a Director
or any person engaged in the full-time employment of the
Company, concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHE(EF)

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 207 and 235
(2020: 227 and 240) employees in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, respectively.

Remuneration packages are generally structured in reference to
qualifications, experience, performance and market term. The
Company has also adopted share option schemes, details of
which are set forth under the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” in the Prospectus and Note 27 to the financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group provided
various trainings to its employees ranging from operation skill
such as occupational safety training and machine control
training to professional knowledge including management
system and business knowledge, to ensure the effective
implementation of the Group’s business strategy.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors), have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing
connected transaction entered by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 is exempted under Rule 14A.73 of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

annual

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 31 to the
financial statements.

In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in Note
31 to the financial statements, the Company confirms that it
has reviewed the transactions which complied with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules and the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (if applicable).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE (H)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, other than the non-compliance
matter disclosed on Note 29 to the financial statements, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and during the year, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCES

The Group is committed to building a sustainable future and
maintaining the long term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. It assesses the materiality of
various ESG issues and take measures to control the
environmental and social impacts during operations. Acting in
an environmentally responsible manner, all businesses of the
Group are required to comply with all applicable ESG laws and
regulations strictly.

The Group strives to minimize its environmental impacts
through effective air emissions control, superior water and
energy efficiency, proper waste management and resources
conservation. The Group also puts effort into creating positive
social impacts by protecting
integrity. More discussion on the Group’s ESG initiatives,
performance and applicable ESG laws and regulations can be
found in the standalone “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report”.

labour right and maintaining

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important and valuable
assets and thus
remuneration packages to
management
employees of the Group.

it provides competitive and attractive
retain the employees. The

reviews annually the remuneration to its

The Group values long standing relationships with its suppliers
and customers. The Group aims at delivering high quality
services to its customers and developing mutual trust and
enhancing communication and commitment between the Group
and its suppliers.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHE(EF)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the percentages of
purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 15.6% and 42.3%, respectively. The
percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers were 27.0% and
42.4%, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or any of their close associates, or any Shareholders
of the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provides that the Directors shall be
entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty except they shall
incur or sustain through their own wilful neglect or default,
fraud and dishonesty respectively. In addition, during the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Company arranged appropriate
liability insurance coverage in respect of any legal action
against the Directors. The insurance coverage shall be
reviewed on an annual basis.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to
enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate at any time during the year or at the end
of the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE (H)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes of the Company as
disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
or the relevant laws of the Bermuda where the Company is
incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its ultimate goal. It is the policy of the
Company to allow the Shareholders to participate in its profits
and to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Board
continues to adopt a dividend policy on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee. In deciding whether to recommend the
payment of dividend to the Shareholders, the Board will take
into account various factors, including (i) general business
conditions and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; (i) financial condition and results of
operations of the Group; and (iii) expected capital requirements
and future expansion plans of the Group. The payment of
dividend is subject to applicable laws and regulations and the
Company’s constitutional documents. No dividend shall be paid
otherwise than out of profits available for distribution. It is the
intention of the Company to distribute dividends in amounts of
not less than 35% of its net profit for a financial year by way of
cash or by other means.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Saved as those disclosed under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not
have any significant investment during the year under review.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHE(EF)

DONATIONS

During the vyear, the Group made charitable and other
donations in the amount of approximately HK$186,000 (2020:
HK$567,000).

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 197 to 200 of this Annual
Report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no subsequent event between the end of the
reporting period (i.e. 31 December 2021) and the date of this
Annual Report that would cause material impact on the Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM. Ernst & Young, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited
Mr. Wong Tat Tong

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 10 March 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report
B % B

e
EY::

To the shareholders of Tsit Wing International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tsit
Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 196, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

V% BE R E (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,
judgement,
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
in that

in our professional
were of most significance in our audit of the

how our audit addressed the matter is provided
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
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the basis for
consolidated financial statements.

our

audit opinion on the accompanying

Key audit matter

BARETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNETNMNEEERENER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

E 5 /&YW 5 E B E A

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade
receivables of HK$124,791,000, representing
approximately 16% of the total assets of the Group.
Significant management judgement and estimation
was required in assessing the expected loss
allowance (“ECL”) for the trade receivables, with
reference to the grouping of various customer
segments, ageing profile of the trade receivable
balances, existence of disputes, creditworthiness and
past collection history of customers and forecast
economic conditions.
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The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
HERRHN GV BHREWT24 - 3K%16°

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment,
our procedures included: (i) obtaining confirmations
and evidence of subsequent settlements for trade
receivable balances; and (i) evaluating management’s
assumptions used to determine the ECL allowance
through testing of the underlying information on the
ageing reports generated by the Group’s financial
reporting system and assessing the repayment
history, creditworthiness and reputation of the debtors
as well as forward-looking information with reference
to publicly available information.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

V% BE R E (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

AEHFESNERE)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNMNEEEARETEE

BRETEE

Net realisable value of inventories
FEEEFEE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded

inventories of HK$166,606,000, representing
approximately 22% of the total assets of the Group.
Significant management judgement and estimation
were required in assessing the net realisable value of
the inventories, with reference to estimated selling
prices and saleability of the inventories and expected
future market and economic conditions that might
have an impact on the sales projections.

EA2021$12H31E - 8B & B $ 15 177 §166,606,0007%
Tofh BEBBEEXN2Y% - FIHTFERERFE
%ZET’EHjEKAIE#UﬁﬁﬂfSJ R2EZEFEERT
SEREM  URAIFEHE RN AL RKTHL

AR

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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In evaluating management’s assessment,
procedures included: (i) observing physical inventory
counts at major locations to ascertain the condition of
inventories; (i) obtaining an understanding of the net
realisable value assessments made by management;
(iii) reviewing the inventory ageing analysis to identify
slow moving or and (iv)
comparing the actual selling prices of finished goods
subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to their
carrying amounts.

our

obsolete inventories;
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

V% BE R E (&)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

inconsistent with the consolidated financial

72 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYUZEM®KS (F)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

V% BE R E (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

influence the economic

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYUZEM®KS (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYUZEMEKS (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit in this
independent auditor’s report is Wu Ka Lai Cary.

resulting

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27/F One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

10 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

GEEER

Year ended 31 December 2021

B E2021F12 A31B ILEE
2020
2020%F
Notes HK$’000
B 3T FAET
REVENUE A 5 766,793 638,507
Cost of sales 55 & B AR (467,815) (375,453)
Gross profit £ H 298,978 263,054
Other income and gains, net H AU A R Y55 0% 58 5 2,216 15,491
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAX (118,561) (107,223)
Administrative expenses TR (77,215) (74,261)
Other expenses, net Hap S F58 (3,958) (3,841)
Finance costs ELE= DN 6 (864) (1,441)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B4 A1 0% 7 100,596 91,779
Income tax expense FIsBiRAX 10 (20,352) (14,982)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 80,244 76,797
Profit for the year attributable to NAEEBE AEBEENRN
owners of the parent il 80,244 76,797
HK cents HK cents
& Al ol
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREEESEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhAERAER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT 12
Basic YN
— For profit for the year — FW&m A 11.13 10.32
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — F W& A 11.13 10.31
T FFH REEERERERAQR 77



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEETEWER

Year ended 31 December 2021

B E2021F12A31B ILFE
2020
2020%F
HK$'000
FHET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR & 75t A 80,244 76,797
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H b 2 W &
Other comprehensive income that may be BERHIE A EEFTN D B E B
reclassified to profit or loss in B H b 2 T U a
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HBEBINEKWIEH =&
foreign operations 7,424 13,156
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR R H fih 2 @ W &
THE YEAR 7,424 13,156
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR H£R2mWH & 5
THE YEAR 87,668 89,953
Attributable to: LA™ A LA -
Owners of the parent UNEIET =N 87,668 89,953
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R

31 December 2021

202112 A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3T FTERT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 13 168,951 143,913
Intangible assets BEEE 14 220 330
Deposits paid for purchases of items BB EE - BE K& E
of property, plant and equipment HEB EZ® 9,383 14,143
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE - Fe REMER
receivables RIE 17 1,530 852
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 24 2,194 2,782
Total non-current assets EmMBEELE 182,278 162,020
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 15 166,606 117,959
Trade receivables g 5 WA 16 124,791 111,114
Prepayments, deposits and other TEMRIE - e REMmEY
receivables A 17 16,657 14,808
Tax recoverable CIRQEIE e - 2,032
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEBEY 18 272,114 276,807
Total current assets MEEELE 580,168 522,720
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Trade payables =) Ak 19 89,940 51,595
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 & B FE 3R IR 20 44,254 44,553
Derivative financial instruments TESMITA 21 443 491
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITE R 22 3,174 12,094
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 12,593 8,427
Tax payable FE 1R 2,303 4,325
Total current liabilities mEaEERE 152,707 121,485
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 427,461 401,235
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & EWR %5 & &
LIABILITIES 609,739 563,255
ZEFFW BREERERERAA 79



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e MBI R (E)

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H
2020
20204
Notes HK$’000
B 5T FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 13,338 4,935
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAEE 24 7,881 5,817
Total non-current liabilities B N=R -k 21,219 10,752
Net assets BEFE 588,520 552,503
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners BABHEBEAEGESR
of the parent
Share capital fi% 2 25 72,073 72,044
Reserves 1 26 516,447 480,459
Total equity M ARRE 588,520 552,503

Wong Tat Tong Fan Yee Man
HEE BEs
Director Director
BE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERBEEDR

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12AIH L FE
Attributable to owners of the parent
NGIE 2PN A
Share Statutory Share  Exchange
Share premium  Contributed reserve option  fluctuation Other Retained Total
capital account surplus funds reserve reserve reserve profits equity
32N
BA ROEER SARS FELES BRERER FE  AMEE  REEFN  ERAE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(note 26(a)) (note 26(b)) (note 26(c)) (note 26(d)) (note 26(e))
(W 7Eo6@)) (FizE26()) (Mizke(c)) (FiizEee(d)) (FiE26(e))
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 76,394 257,751 123,578 9,754 4,080 (9,981) 218 87,941 549,735
Profit for the year E 7 Al - - - - - - - 76,797 76,797

Other comprehensive income & R E 12 B ¢
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBINEBE
translation of foreign ERZR
operations - - - - - 13,156 - - 13,156

Total comprehensive income 2 Ml & A%

for the year - - - - - 13,156 - 76,797 89,953
Dividends 8 1 - - - - - - - (36453  (36,459)
Issue of shares upon exercise 171 B IR HE S B 1T

of share options % 7 25(a) 310 5,642 - - (4,107) - - - 1,845
Shares repurchased and AR 17 B8 (2 0 7 88

cancelled 25(0) 4660)  (48510) - - - - - - (3170
Equity-settled share option DA RS 12 45 08 R i

arrangements g7 3 27 - 593 - 593
Transfer of share option R B e e

reserve upon forfeiture of BRERE

share options - - - - (107) - - 107 -
Transfer from retained profits &4 5 R H % H - - - 1,954 - - - (1,954) -
Transfer to retained profits BB E A A

upon deregistration of rEEERE

a subsidiary bk - - - - - - (218) 218 -
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12431H 72,044 214,883* 123,678* 11,708 459* 3,175 - 126,656" 562,503

TR FEH RRBERERBRAQA 81



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

GEEZ2DR(E)

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12 A3 ILFE

Notes

ik
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 518 72,044 214,883 123,578 11,708 459 3,175 - 126,656 552,503
Profit for the year E 7 = = = = = = = 80,244 80,244

Other comprehensive income & R E 2 B & ¢
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBINEBE
translation of foreign ERZR
operations = = = = - 7,424 - - 7,424

Total comprehensive income N2 M & A%

for the year = = = = = 7,424 = 80,244 87,668
Dividends BE " = = = = = = = (51,821) (51,821)
Issue of shares upon exercise 171 I IR HE S B 1T

of share options % 2 25(a) 29 519 = = (378) = = = 170
Transfer of share option R R e

reserve upon forfeiture of BRERE

share options = = = = (81) = = 81 =
Transfer from retained profits @4 5 R &% H = = = 2,684 - - - (2,684) -
At 31 December 2021 #2021F12A318 72,073 215,402* 123,578* 14,392* =5 10,599* - 152,476* 588,520
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * "REREBEREEGAVBERAROGARE

HK$516,447,000 (31 December 2020: HK$480,459,000) in the 516,447,000/ 7t (202012 5318 : 480,459,000
consolidated statement of financial position. BIT) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEREMRNER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12 AR IEFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FER FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING R EZBHHELSHKRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B %% A1 A 100,596 91,779
Adjustments for: KLATIEE % :
Interest income A B WA 5 (1,771) (3,685)
Finance costs Bl & KA 6 864 1,441
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  f# REEEITE 13 13,541 15,031
Depreciation of other items of Y - B MR EEMIE
property, plant and equipment BiTE 13 25,583 23,784
Amortisation of intangible assets | B EE 14 118 110
Impairment of trade receivables H 5 W IR R A 7 373 835
Equity-settled share option A BR #E 45 55 o) B AR 1
expense 3 7 - 593
Write-off of trade receivables & 5 e W R IE M8 7 722 1,286
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEWE  BEKLREE
property, plant and equipment ERC ¢ IE & 7 (76) 81
Fair value loss on derivative THES R T ERNFEE
financial instruments J?E_ﬂﬁ 7 833 718
Write-down of inventories to net FERRER#5EFE
realisable value 7 1,167 756
Write-off of inventories 7 & # 58 7 566 779
COVID-19-related rent H AR HECOVID-19
concessions from lessors EEEEHR 5, 23 - 619)
142,516 132,889
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE M,/ (47,952) 10,019
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 e W skIE (3 ), R
receivables 2o (13,292) 8,417
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, T§1ﬂ' RIE R REME
deposits and other receivables W sk IE (42 1),k (2,399) 2,811
Increase/(decrease) in trade ff%%ﬁ5¢¢ RIEIE N, OB )
payables 37,261 (23,652)
Decrease in accruals and other JE 5T 5K 18 & E b & - FRIB
payables VR (750) (7,217)
Cash generated from operations KEMBRE 115,384 123,267
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHE/’E F 15 H (7,296) (11,659)
Overseas taxes paid EfEINIA (10,495) (5,502)
Net cash flows generated from REZHABRENE
operating activities F R 97,593 106,106
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

GERERER(A)

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12 AR IEFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FET 77T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RBREZBHRELSAKRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWE HEMKEEEB
plant and equipment (26,972) (19,545)
Purchases of items of right-of-use HBEFRAEEEEE
assets = (6,307)
Deposits paid for purchases of items XEEWME « ME L&EHE
of property, plant and equipment HEES (4,242) (8,422)
Purchases of derivative financial BETESRTA
instruments (896) (823)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  BEMKEER
property, plant and equipment P 15 5818 195 501
Interest income received B F B A 1,878 3,573
Net cash flows used in investing BRELZHMARERE
activities F R (30,037) (31,023)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING R ETEHRLHKE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares upon 717 {# ﬁ%ﬂx% RETIRG
exercise of share options Fr 15 38 25(a) 170 1,845
Amounts paid for shares AR 15 B8 [B] B 1 3k
repurchased 25(b) = (563,170)
Dividends paid BT B (51,821) (36,453)
New bank borrowings FTILIRITIE 14,375 46,734
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITENR (23,295) (60,794)
Interest paid SRR (104) (443)
Lease payments HMEMR 23 (13,624) (14,933)
Net cash flows used in financing BMEETHAMARERETF
activities 8 (74,299) (117,214)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND R&RESZEYRDF
CASH EQUIVALENTS (6,743) (42,131)
Cash and cash equivalents at the F#EREMIREEEY
beginning of the year . 276,807 315,211
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNGE [ R B 52 8 F
changes, net 2,050 3,727
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £ XRERBELZEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 272,114 276,807
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HeRBRESEEYESH
CASH AND CASH Pkl
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTE R 18 191,892 176,807
Time deposits with original maturity & B8R EI 8 B 2 K = &
of less than three months when AR EEBER
acquired 18 80,222 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated AR & REXRMEHE S
in the consolidated statement of LREeEEY
cash flows 18 272,114 276,807
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Notes to Financial Statements

B %% ¥ 3R Y &

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM
10, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Flats F—J, 11th Floor, Block 1,
Kwai Tak Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were engaged in the

following principal activities:

° processing and distribution of coffee, tea and related
complementary products

o processing and distribution of frozen food

° sale and rental of coffee and tea machines

ARAREEEHR

REBEBRERERAG(ARA AL
BREGMAIHBR AR - RQFH
=T it = B2 12 7 Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda ° AN A Al 8 & 2 & 0 B 7 R
BN A ZBEEBE15-3REEIES
D EBIEIEFJE -

RRFRREER AT - RNQF R B
NRARFRNE NI ERET

e MIEDEHWMEE -  RRBEEREE
o
e MIENHIRRM

o HHE R HTHM TR NI
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

1.

86

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

M~ B &R

RAREEESH (EF)

ARBETEMBRRFEWT

follows:
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued
Principal place ordinary/ Percentage of
of operation registered  equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
EMEL B/
TELER ERTLE/ QR ELG
£ EEBE at il R BEAOH TEED
Direct  Indirect
EE BF:3
Dongguan Tsit Wing Food PRC/Mainland HK$78,880,000 - 100  Processing of coffee beans;
Co Ltd.# China distribution of coffee, tea,
and related complementary
products;
REREXEMARAA! mE/ BN 78,880,000 T MIMBEE - 2 Hmek - KR
HAEEER
Shanghai Tsit Wing Food PRC/Mainland US$2,400,000 - 100  Trading of coffee, tea and
Co Ltd.* China related complementary
products; sale and rental of
coffee and tea machines;
and sale of frozen food
FERERmARAA B/ B A 2,400,000% 7T BEEMY XREHEEE
o HEREEMYERA
B ARBESRRM
Tsit Wing Beverage Machine Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of coffee machines
Company Limited and related products
ERERRBABRLA B 28T EEMERERER
Tsit Wing Coffee Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Processing of coffee beans;
Limited distribution of coffee, tea
and related complementary
products; and sale and
rental of coffee and tea
machines
ERWMEER A A BE 10,0007 7 MIMBES - DM X R

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2021
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

1. RARKEEEN (&)

MELRER (E)

registration/ Issued
Principle place ordinary/ Percentage of
of operation registered  equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
EMmEL B/
TERER BRTESR/ rUNGY 3
£ REEME ot it R A BREAR TEEH
Direct  Indirect
EE A %
Tsit Wing Cold Chain Solutions  Hong Kong HK$100 - 100  Processing and distribution of
Company Limited frozen food
BEARRRERARAFR 0 100/ 7T MIKkDHEERE M
Tsit Wing (China) Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited
BR(PE)GEERAA 0 2T REER
Tsit Wing (China) Holdings Hong Kong HK$1 100 —  Investment holding
Limited
RR(PE)ZERERARA BB 18T REER
Tsit Wing (China) Industrial Hong Kong HK$22,264,780 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited
ER(PE)EXERAA BE 22,264,780 7T REZK
Tsit Wing (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$5,143,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
BREB(EB)ERALA BE 5,143,000/ 7 REZK
Tsit Wing International Company  British Virgin US$10,276 100 —  Investment holding
Limited Islands
RERTES 10,276% 1T REZK
# These companies are registered as wholly-foreign-owned # ZERNFRIRERBEETMAC A

enterprises established under PRC law

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BEELE

FRIINTEERRIZZEINRFEE
SERAKBEEFEEZRLINAR

BB AR EERR

> fied 2 4 L At Y /BB

RAER BLHABBRITE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

88

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value. They
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 RBEE (&)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

BOFEE (E)

MARBERAEEAFINEREHR
RZERENBEUENOEF  AIAE
BRI HEEREREHREHRNED
HeZE—HBEFTERERL B8

(@ HEREHREMEREFBEANAGH
Eri

b) HMAHLTHMELNERN: &

© FEEHREHREELZE-

FEBARMNBMBHRERIIER —BNES
BR - Wiz EA QR AR RS HE R
H-MBARMNEECHAEENGE
HEZHAGAEAR UBEBSHES
AEEVEELEEARLL -

BENMEMEERANEKRNDFEBAE
BEARHEEARIEE S ANE
I B S B BRI Bl IR B B AR
R-BBEAEEKRERRAZERZHM
BREERRRHEMNEERABE #BFE -
WA FAXEkBEREHERAHET
BrYf3H -

i =5 B A0 B0 BB UK b SCRT At 1) = TR AE
AZzz—BHZELREEH ~5ES
ENFEEROEFRESR -WEL
AIfEREaNESHEERIIENET
RGP -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

90

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary,
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)

it

and

liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of
any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,

as

appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities.

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) for the first time

for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Amendment to
HKFRS 16
30 June 2021

(early adopted)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 KRB LME (&
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)
The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs are KIEST BBV BREEANMEE RTE

described below: HiutaT

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt
with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free
rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities when accounting for
changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for
determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to
entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated
as a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy.

BBV R E LR FEW HEGE
XA - BAEM B REEAE
7 BN BREEAFIRRE
R EREEREI6H (EFTN) B
FERERIBAFI REEY 5 —ERAR
ME(ERBRFE])BRAR  RB
FEITHARERERFEHFBRE
BB - ZEEIREERET A
ERTREeREERBEZA
WS REBETEESEETE
HEEN EHMERAREHA
ARCHMEERABZEREE A
REZEYHEAENFREERSE
ME#ESIH BETENEERE
CHEELRELLEREEZE

Al Z SCRT B2 o o ZFBET A
AR REENEMREC BT K
R hEEZBRT  EAR
YRBERZIE T Kotk o B HIRA
AREEEZ A MREKEEYRAB
EAUHRELEAFREZ — KB
FIRIE - AR E RERE I 2 BK
M o i 48 BB B R 4 15 E A BB 48
Ry ZEBNERERER
VEMEAERENCEKR - B
BEAATEEEAAREBHERR
F R 7 Bk 48 A 26 0 7 Ak ZR24ME A
WGBS A BB R - R ¥
FEETH BTECRENES
BRIZHETE - I ZEEFT R
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

92

(a)

(Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank
borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars
based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate as
at 31 December 2021. Since the interest rates of
these borrowings were not replaced by RFRs during
the period, the amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the
Group. If the interest rates of these borrowings are
replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will
apply this practical expedient upon the modification
of these borrowings provided that the “economically
equivalent” criterion is met.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021
extends the availability of the practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic by 12
months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies
to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions
for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at the beginning of the current
accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1
January 2021 and applied the practical expedient
during the year ended 31 December 2021 to all rent
concessions granted by the lessors that affected
only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022 as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 1
Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs
2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current? 4

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

e
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

94

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS(Cmﬁmuaﬂ
As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statement.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer
to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on
or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 EEMEEAKRERNE B M KR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

96

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continueqd)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of
those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 T M {B 4 K 4 MM & 8 B 15 )%

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING EE (&

STANDARDS (Continueqd)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out & BB 7 # & 2E RII20189F 220204 18 B

amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples B F BT B E B B % RS R E

accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the P BAVBREERFESR  BAUK

amendments that are expected to be applicable to the #&%/EE‘J%%% BEFT - B P R BB

Group are as follows: FEREBMFUBETAR) - BHHH K

SEEANEITNFBEOT

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that s FAABUMBMEEBNFORSHTA :
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms BEEEBETEVeRABEHLEE
of a new or modified financial liability are eRmBBENGRERERSRME
substantially different from the terms of the original ENRABEAEZEZERAEENE
financial liability. These fees include only those paid H-ZEEREREERABRER
or received between the borrower and the lender, /\ZF‘?S‘ZH‘JZHSZHXE’]%FH BIEE
including fees paid or received by either the RAKERARKRS —F sl
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity HXE’\JL%% ERYNEEREHENE
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are RZIERTNFEREHREMEREK
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of ZIEBEHNHIXBNEF A ERERZ
the annual reporting period in which the entity first B3] - Z1& 5] 120221 A1H TZ
applies the amendment. The amendment is effective BRI FE B ER - Ei uT
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January AETIRAER - HAIZIEET T
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The REE IS &ﬁkﬁk%j{@‘

amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

e HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of e FBABUBHRELAFIRKHEE M
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold MR &8 B 7 s &5 4E Bl 551658 P B #9
improvements in lllustrative Example 13 TR EE N EARBEREN
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential HEFER WRAERERTAEY
confusion regarding the treatment of lease BmELEANB16RNSEHEEERE
incentives when applying HKFRS 16. REHETRE -

TR HFH ERERERERAA 97



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

98

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement s
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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102

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXEFHERBE (E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties A
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETNBEAT — T BRARERAEESR
7 B
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that @ #ZAHBEALHZATBEEZRID
person’s family and that person XEKE BZATL
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () EHsEEESAEE :
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEAEBEFERZE %
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) BEAEEXAEERRANE
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; ZEBABRKE
or %
(o) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) ZARFTE TIEMKEGHNESS :
conditions applies:
()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEASZEBR-—SE/
same group; PS=WNC
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —EAEERS—EB(HZS
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow —ERBMNEATF - WBARK
subsidiary of the other entity); EESOENGN: ) A-NE Y
AN ,’/ﬂ\’./\% H
0 =1F
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (i) ZERBREAEERRA-—F=7H
the same third party; RS
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —EHEBAREF=FEEBNEE
the other entity is an associate of the third ¥ - mME—ERAZE=F
entity; ERMBE AR
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ZHEBIDURKESERNEE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or FEBMERNEE R A
an entity related to the Group; BER 2 B AT &
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) FZEREX(QFTHEBIALTIESISK
person identified in (a); HEZES
(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) @WOFTEAATHZERBESE
influence over the entity or is a member of the AEE) HEBZER(HZ
key management personnel of the entity (or of ERENSAAHNEZEETEA
a parent of the entity); and BERKE &
(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which (vii) ZEBIEMBSEENEMK
it is a part, provides key management BRRIRAEENRNEEETE R
personnel services to the Group or to the AR FEZE B AERE -

parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Shorter of the lease terms
and 2.2%
4% to 33.33%

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Customer relationship and trademark are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 7
and 10 years, respectively.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

ME BERRBRIFE (&)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

106

@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the wunderlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease
received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

incentives

Leasehold land
Leased properties

36 to 50 years
2 to 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXREHEERE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued) HeE (&)
Group as a lessee (Continued) FEFERERBA (E)
(b) Lease liabilities b)) HEEE
Lease liabilities are recognised at the HEBERHERKBARZHEER
commencement date of the lease at the present NI TELMBEEN K2 RE T AR
value of lease payments to be made over the lease Re-MENKBEEEENK(BEE
term. The lease payments include fixed payments B EE MR R E R EE
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any B EREHSANENEEEN
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments FoARFHEBBRE THTEHE
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts NHEBE - BENRNTBEAEES
expected to be paid under residual value ERETENBEEEEENTTERE
guarantees. The lease payments also include the FEBEIEBEEmS RS (0
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably MR ASETHERIEHEERE
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments RE) o TEURARIBE A R ayn] 1
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease ENFRELEBENZOEMHXE
term reflects the Group exercising the option to MEEEAER AR -

terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, FEHEMNRNRAER  mEER
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the FIBREMANETNSETE  AIAEH
lease commencement date because the interest rate FARANEERrBHNESEER
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After XA E -RNHEAKRBHE BEAE
the commencement date, the amount of lease B2 REIE I - RERFIE G - I
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of FEL M E R FKmR A o o -
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. WA EMER(BNEREE - HER
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is THEE (HlniE & th XM ET E
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in BB ARKEENREEZ L)X E
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a ENBEENEEESGHEMNER)
change to future lease payments resulting from a BlEfzI2=HEaEMNERAEE-

change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.
The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately AEEMEEEBERUBRAERA
in the statement of financial position. BEBEZET o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

108

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

RERHMEMEE (&)

W ERR B (F)
AEEEESREENEHERAEED
MERRTRMEENELRERE - X
BREABTRENEEGKREUESL
Heng HESMEE IMERSE -
DRRBIEBHEKATENEREERA
MARAEMEENNBRANESRE
MEBBELRFE Mo BARAFER
AR EERANESREERB N SR
BREBENBREERMEENREER
A WHRAMAXBELTEN TR
BEDBRBRAFEFAER -

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are FIBEERAREENEREENNRR S
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the HEIXAEBEA#EBESILEZEEL
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way B)ER - ERAXEBENEEM/ERSN

purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

MEEINE-—ROEBHEAXNEEN
THMEEEER -

Subsequent measurement — Financial assets at BENE — BEBELATENLHEE
amortised cost (debt instruments) (EHTA)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently REBHEKAFENSREEERFERE
measured using the effective interest method and are S ( RFE) AT E - WA REZ R
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in BXE - BEEEXRILER BFHRE

the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

receive, discounted at an

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the

TREERE

AEBERAHWIHFRQAFEFAABEN
EEKIARAGEERR((EHESR
BEDOBEE BRREEERBDERRE
BeaNIHNeOReRERAKETR
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ARAEREENEHMERNEES
B2EAEHREEER) - StB VIR RE
REBEEEELEMHNEERRMS - T
WABNELERY ReETERREHAD
BHEEEBY AT REBREE (218
HEEEBR) -

EAR‘%E:‘: BH - AEEFGHESRITAN

credit risk on a financial instrument has increased EERBBVIEERARES KIEE
significantly since initial recognition. When making the on o ST %ﬁﬁ-r CAEE RN HE H
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default TREMTEBLEENNRAR &EA?NZAEE
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting R TAZREEZHNAER

date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial ZRBABEKARSE NEFERS E’J/\

instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical

and forward-looking information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 120 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and
loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial
depends on their classification as follows:

liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or
non-current or separated into current and non-current
portions based on an assessment of the facts and
circumstances (i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after the
end of the reporting period, the derivative is
classified as non-current (or separated into current
and non-current portions) consistently with the
classification of the underlying item.

° Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract are classified consistently with the
cash flows of the host contract.

° Derivative instruments that are designated as, and
are effective hedging are classified
consistently with the classification of the underlying

instruments,
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Treasury shares EFR 5%

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continueq)
When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one vyear,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continueq)

122

®)

(©)

Leasing of coffee and tea machines

leasing of coffee and tea
machines is recognised over time in accordance
with the terms of respective underlying agreements
because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from the

Sale of goods with leasing of coffee and tea
machines

The Group also provides leasing of coffee and tea
machines with the sale of coffee and tea products.
If customers’ purchases of coffee and tea products
reach the agreed minimum amount, the rental
charge of machines for that month will be waived.
Such pricing arrangements are settled monthly or
quarterly and the rental of machines is bundled
together with the sale of coffee and tea products.

The contracts for bundled sale of goods with leasing
of coffee and tea machines comprised of two
performance obligations because the promises to
transfer the goods and provide leasing of coffee and
tea machines are capable of being distinct and
separately identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction
price is allocated based on the relative standalone
selling prices of the selling prices of the coffee and
tea products and rental of coffee and tea machines.
The revenue recognition of the sale of goods and
leasing of coffee and tea machines is set out above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Government subsidies are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the government subsidies will
be received and all attaching conditions will be compiled
with, as further explained in the accounting policies for
“Government grants” above.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Group transfers the related goods or
services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants to recognise their contribution to the Group.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value was determined by an external valuer using
a binomial model.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes

The Company continues to operate an occupational
retirement scheme registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. This
scheme has been granted exemption pursuant to Section
5 of the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. When an
employee leaves the scheme before his/her interest in the
Company’s employer contributions vesting fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Company are
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.

Since December 2000, the Group operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries. The Company’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Contributions from these schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the schemes. The assets of these schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXSHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
Bye-Laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

IR =

KRB ERERA S £ & B RAL & 1R
RRBE - EERPBE RN Y B RKHK
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

128

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgement,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale
of goods and leasing of machines

The Group provides leasing of coffee and tea machines
that are either sold separately or bundled together with
the sale of coffee and tea products to a customer. The
leasing of machines are a promise to transfer services in
the future and are part of the negotiated exchange
between the Group and the customer.

EREEH R MG

MAEAEEPBEHREAFTRZEEEFL A
b fAEF R RER > MaxFHIE - AEF RR
REEBRA HAX BEABENHRE
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EHERFHE -

#|
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3.

130

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale
of goods and leasing of machines (Continued)

The Group determined that both sale of coffee and tea
products and leasing of coffee and tea machines are
capable of being distinct. The fact that the Group
regularly sells both coffee and tea products and leasing of
machines on a stand-alone basis indicates that the
customer can benefit from both products on their own.
The Group also determined that the promises to transfer
coffee and tea products and to lease the coffee and tea
machines are distinct within the context of the contract.
The sale of coffee and tea products and leasing of coffee
and tea machines are not inputs to a combined item in
the contract. The Group is not providing a significant
integration service because the presence of the sale of
coffee and tea products and leasing of coffee and tea
machines together in the contract does not result in any
additional or combined functionality and neither the coffee
and tea products nor the leasing of coffee and tea
machines customises the other. In addition,
and tea products and leasing of coffee and tea machines
are not highly interdependent or highly interrelated,
because the Group would be able to sell the coffee and
tea products even if the customer declined leasing of
coffee and tea machines and vice versa. Consequently,
the Group allocated a portion of the transaction price to
the sale of coffee and tea products and leasing of coffee
and tea machines based on relative stand-alone selling
prices.

the coffee
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it
needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).
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132

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to ageing analysis
and other specific assessments of the Group’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of
goods based on historical sales patterns and other
specific attributes, and management experience and
judgement. Based on such review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
values. Due to changes in market and economic
environment and customers’ preference, actual saleability
of goods and actual selling prices that could be realised
might be different from the original estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation.

Provision of expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The provision rate of trade receivables is made based on
the assessment of their recoverability and the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables as well as other
quantitative and qualitative information and on
management’s judgement and assessment of the
forward-looking information. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers’ actual default in the
future. Information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 16 to the financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXEFHERME (E)

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued) HEFTREM (&)
Impairment of non-financial assets HEHEEZHE
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of AEERSHERREMEEERMEE
impairment for all non-financial assets (including right-of (PRECEHAEEE) TEREFEEMRM
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. EFR -FeMEERNEBRRBE TR
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there EAENEERERETRENR WE
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be Eiﬁi%iﬁhZﬁ%@ﬁhi@ﬁTW
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value O (BIERAFERHEKAEEFA
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its BEZES®E) AFERE - 2 FER
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value HEXRTIRER B *Efuﬁigz/\ﬂi
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation NAFHERZREZE8E AJEBRM
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on i%{%ﬂ‘i*ﬂﬂﬁ?ﬁfT%ﬁ%ﬁ%Z?&
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s SER(MEABARMZEERLIAN
length transaction of similar assets, observable market R 5 B HI 1% &8 AR R B 2 {A] & s K A
prices, or transaction prices of similar assets in less ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ(ﬂﬁLfﬁ))ﬂﬁ EZEEZIEM
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in RAGE - B EFHEERR  BEEY
economic conditions since the date of the transactions AT REBEEXNR eELEM 2 AR
that occurred at those prices, or other valuation ARBEME  WEES IR RUG
techniques, as appropriate, less incremental costs for BEZERenEB2HE-

disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are

undertaken, management must estimate the expected

future cash flows from the asset or cash generating unit

and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

the present value of those cash flows.

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. DEEH

For management purposes, the Group is organised into REBENMES  AEEZERLERS

business units based on their products and services and BN EBEMN MEJE2HOLIWAT :

has two reportable segments as follows:

(a) the beverage solutions (“Beverage Solutions”) @ BHRXIRS(TERKERS] D
segment processes and distributes coffee, tea and = )JDI&“ HOPE - RRBERE
related complementary products, sells food and Em EERMIRER - MUE# R
beverages, coffee machines and other related H b AE BA 2= Gn - DA % R U0 WE A 2
products, and leases coffee and tea machines; and I R

(b) the food products (“Food Products”) segment trades b)) BEm(RmDSHBEEZREM -
frozen food.
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4.

134

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Management monitors the results of the Group’s
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that interest income,
derivative financial instruments, head office and corporate
expenses as well as non-lease-related finance costs are
excluded from such measurement.

fair value changes on

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments,
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with

reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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TEHEN (&)

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4.

Year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021512831H
LEFE

Segment revenue (note 5) AU A (M 5E5)
Sales to external customers HE TR P 750,009 16,784 766,793
Segment results PEEE 113,615 (1,705) 111,910
Reconciliation: #HAE
Interest income M EWA 1,771
Corporate and unallocated TERKRDERFE

expenses, net (12,981)
Finance costs (other than interest EIEK A (FHE&EF &

on lease liabilities) BR 51) (104)
Profit before tax B& 7% A1 4 A 100,596
Other segment information: HithpHEHR
Depreciation and amortisation & K 38,573 669 39,242
Reversal of impairment of trade B 5 EWGRIE R E R R

receivables (550) (145) (695)
Impairment of trade receivables B S W IERE 309 64 373
Write-off of trade receivables E 5 e U5k TE 1 88 722 - 722
Write-down of inventories to net  FE&E R E Al # 1 FE

realisable value 1,167 = 1,167
Write-off of inventories FEMHE 457 109 566
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE BE R

property, plant and equipment HETEB W (76) = (76)
Capital expenditure* BEARZ 23,695 7,519 31,214

The capital expenditure includes purchases of other items

of property, plant and equipment of HK$26,972,000 and
deposits for purchases of other items of property, plant
and equipment of HK$4,242,000 incurred during the year.

EAAYBEFREEEMGYDE  BE
N 2% 78 526,972,000 7T R EE

EHtHWx BERIKEEE RS
4,242,000/ 7T °

TR FEH RRBERERBRAQA
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DEEHR(E)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021612H31H
Segment assets PEEE 484,819 19,851 504,670
Reconciliation: #H -
Elimination of intersegment 2 B FE Uk RRE 8

receivables (18,287)

Corporate and unallocated assets %M AKDEEE 276,063
Total assets EE®E 762,446
Segment liabilities 2 E & 166,073 20,736 186,809
Reconciliation: Ear 3
Elimination of intersegment payables 7 &5 & J& < 3k 18 % §4 (18,287)
Corporate and unallocated liabilites %N ADE & & 5,404
Total liabilities BELEH 173,926
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

4. oHER (F)

Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
EHRREIRH R &t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FEL FAT
Year ended 31 December 2020 Bl £2020F12A31H
FFE
Segment revenue (note 5) 2 EBUWLA (B 5E5)
Sales to external customers HETIINEP 623,261 15,246 638,507
Segment results DERE 102,317 1,805 104,122
Reconciliation: Eor 30
Interest income B U A 3,685
Corporate and unallocated rERRNERZFE
expenses, net (15,585)
Finance costs (other than interest FEK A (FHE&EF B
on lease liabilities) B 41) (443)
Profit before tax BR 751 A1l & A 91,779
Other segment information: Hitp HEHR :
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 38,856 69 38,925
Reversal of impairment of trade B RN BERERD
receivables (614) — (614)
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 WG IERE 785 50 835
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 I WUk T8 1 88 1,286 - 1,286
Write-down of inventories to net  F & M5 £ Al 217 F(E
realisable value 748 8 756
Write-off of inventories FEME 721 58 779
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE BE R
property, plant and equipment HEIEE B8 81 - 81
Capital expenditure* BEARRE 33,579 695 34,274

The capital expenditure includes purchases of other items
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of HK$19,545,000 and HK$6,307,000, respectively, and
deposits for purchases of other items of property, plant
and equipment of HK$8,422,000 incurred during the year.

TR HFH ERERERERAA

EARZBEFANBEEMYE BE
REBEBEREAEEE D A
19,545,000/ Jt }6,307,0005% 7t * A &
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DEER (&)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ERREIRH Bm &t
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET FAT
As at 31 December 2020 ®2020612H31H
Segment assets PHEE 400,085 7,560 407,645
Reconciliation: #HAE
Corporate and unallocated assets MERADEEE 277,095
Total assets BEBE 684,740
Segment liabilities 2 EE & 128,338 761 129,099
Reconciliation: #HAE
Corporate and unallocated liabilites %R ADE & & 3,138
Total liabilities BEEHR 132,237
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DEER (&)
Geographical information ih 32 E R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REIIBEFHYPA
2020
20204
HK$'000
FHET
Hong Kong B 473,765 418,663
Mainland China AR A A 281,849 209,876
Others H i 11,179 9,968
766,793 638,507
The revenue information above is based on the EWABR IBREBEREPAEME
locations of the customers. Bl o
(b) Non-current assets (b) ¥HEBEE
2020
20204
HK$'000
FHET
Hong Kong BB 83,998 69,807
Mainland China A A 3, 94,556 88,579
178,554 158,386
The non-current asset information above is based on FERSBEEERNDBBEEFN
the locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax EH 2 WA BRRECEHBEE
assets and financial assets. NemEE-
Information about a major customer AR—RBEXEEZEFHNER
During the year, the Group’s revenue from sales to an FRN AKEREEET BRHELE
external customer, which was over 10% of the total X7 2 INERE F /Y I A 206,842,000/ JT
revenue, amounted to HK$206,842,000 (2020: (20204 : 163,449,000 JT) 15 48 Ug A
HK$163,449,000). 10% -°
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. Wz Httg AR WKz FHE
NET
Revenue W
An analysis of disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from AEENTEFPEHRARNBES LT
contracts with customers is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021512831H Lt

FE
Types of goods or services EmBREER
Sales of coffee, tea and other HEMDE - X R HEAM
related complementary products B E E @ 723,465 - 723,465
Sales of frozen food HEZRARM - 16,784 16,784
Rental income from leasing of £ 78 00 A 2 A Y
coffee and tea machines A ON 26,544 = 26,544

Total revenue from contracts with B F & LKA L HE

customers 750,009 16,784 766,793
Geographical markets i &%
Hong Kong &8 457,671 16,094 473,765
Mainland China A 281,159 690 281,849
Others HAth 11,179 - 11,179

Total revenue from contracts with B FE &L A 458
customers 750,009 16,784 766,793

Timing of revenue recognition W AT E™E

Goods transferred at a point in time R EBH B EL & H 723,465 16,784 740,249
Services transferred over time REEEBES RS 26,544 - 26,544

Total revenue from contracts with B FE & LKA EHE
customers 750,009 16,784 766,793
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2021412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W#H -HMWARKZ SEE(£E)
NET (Continued)

Revenue (Continued) Wz (&)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ZHRE R B aar
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

Year ended 31 December 2020 # £2020F12A318 1t

FE

Types of goods or services ERTREER
Sales of coffee, tea and other HEMYE X RHM

related complementary products ~ HEREE @ 600,315 - 600,315
Sales of frozen food HEEZRRM - 15,246 15,246
Rental income from leasing of £ 78 00 B A 2 2R Y

coffee and tea machines el A 22,891 — 22 891
Food and beverage store operations & fh & & #1 [k & & 55 - 55

Total revenue from contracts with B F & XK A EHE

customers 623,261 15,246 638,507
Geographical markets i & 35
Hong Kong B 404,064 14,599 418,663
Mainland China H A i 209,229 647 209,876
Others HAth 9,968 — 9,968

Total revenue from contracts with BFE &L A E5E
customers 623,261 15,246 638,507

Timing of revenue recognition W A 52 B 5

Goods transferred at a point in time R ER R EL S H 600,370 15,246 615,616
Services transferred over time A 3B I 88 7% PR 7% 22,891 - 22,891

Total revenue from contracts with B F & XK AL HE
customers 623,261 15,246 638,507
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W# -HMh ARKZ F5E(£)
NET (Continued)
Other income and gains, net

An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows:

Htb WA R s %88
Hi WA RS FEANAT

2020

2020%F

HK$'000

FHET

Bank interest income 1T ALB A 1,771 3,685

Government subsidies* XK #8 Rb - 10,786
COVID-19-related rent concessions A # F H)COVID-1948 B8

from lessors R L - 619
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - BELEZEEBHK

property, plant and equipment = 76 —

Foreign exchange difference, net VEH =R FR = 62

Others HA 369 339

2,216 15,491

* Government subsidies for the year ended 31 December * H E2020%12 A31 8 1 F [Z 5 BUF 1 8L

2020 mainly represented subsidies received in connection
with the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative

Region.

There were no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these subsidies.

TEERBBRNITRERFHR RN
RESZTHINED - BIEEZEH
MAERMMARBEITHRFXEIRSEE -

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. mLE R
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEKADTWT
2020
20204
HK$'000
FET
Interest on bank borrowings |ITERF B 104 443
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMER 760 998
864 1,441
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31 December 2021

2021412 A31H
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRFEAIEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEEBRBAEMDEMEBE(GEA)T
(crediting): 5| & I8 X
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Cost of inventories sold” BEFERA" 429,026 342,021
Depreciation”: e :
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13,541 15,031
Other items of property, plant and H¥ % BE NEZEER
equipment 25,583 23,784
39,124 38,815
Auditor’s remuneration % SRD BN & 2,203 2,029
Amortisation of intangible assets | & EE 118 110
Lease payments not included in the Kt AFHE BB EH
measurement of lease liabilities HEZ 681 1,191
Foreign exchange differences, net* [& i, = & /F 58" 992 62)
Reversal of impairment of trade B 5 & YR IR R (B Bl
receivables* (695) (614)
Impairment of trade receivables* B 5 RN EIERE 373 835
Write-off of trade receivables* B 5 e Y TE M 722 1,286
Employee benefit expenses EERMNAZ (BRENHES
(including directors’ remuneration ~ HEMEEH M) -
disclosed in note 8)"
Salaries, wages, allowances and e TE EBRIEL
bonuses 119,732 110,683
Equity-settled share option R EERERS
expense = 593
Pension scheme contributions RARSEFEIHKR(RER-KE
(defined contribution schemes)* 2l 5,698 5,007
125,430 116,283
Write-down of inventories to net FEHRRZEERFE"
realisable value* 1,167 756
Write-off of inventories* 17 & 35~ 566 779
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEW - HE L&#HEB
property, plant and equipment* (Uezk),/ BB~ (76) 81
Fair value losses, net of derivative $TE < T A QA FEEEFE
financial instruments® 833 718
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202112 A31H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 7. F?ﬁau =R (&)
The cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12A31B I FEHHEERA
amounted to HK$467,815,000 (2020: HK$375,453,000) £467,815,000% T (20204 -
and included cost of inventories sold of HK$429,026,000 375,453,000 T) R B IEE EF ER A
(2020: HK$342,021,000), depreciation charge of 429,026,000 5T (20204 -
HK$16,338,000 (2020: HK$15,626,000) and employee 342,021,000 ) 1 & BH X
benefit expenses of HK$13,137,000 (2020: 16,338,000/ 7T (20204 : 15,626,000/
HK$10,433,000). JT) VA KB B & 7 7 213,137,000/ 7T

(20204 : 10,433,000/ JT) °

* These amounts are included in “Other income and gains, * ZERBEHAZEEER 2THMKA
net” or “Other expenses, net” on the face of the R Sl [ M FEIA -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

# There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by # AEBERELT BMEUYUSHANER
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of SRR - DURVE IR B B UK -
contributions.

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEFM

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to BT EmR A FE R A K 55383(1)

the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the @ () - )&(f)ﬂ;k&“ﬁ (BBEEEF=

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BRI B2 AT BE 2 F N E =

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of N

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#& T FET
Fees e 900 875
Other emoluments: HHMe
Salaries, allowances and benefits  #4& 2B R E WEF
in kind 9,838 10,258
Performance related bonuses 48 R 3 TE 527 1,369
Equity-settled share option %ﬁni =8 ﬁ ﬁéﬁaﬂi
expense - 217
Pension scheme contributions BREFEIHE
(defined contribution schemes) (FE #H +%J) 671 785
11,936 13,504
Note: B EE

Kam Chun Pong Bernard was the Operating Officer of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 before his
appointment as an executive director of the Company on 4 May
2021. His remuneration disclosed above included those
remuneration since his appointment as the executive director of
the Company.
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
Certain directors were granted share options during the
year ended 31 December 2018 in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option scheme of
the Company, further details of which are set out in note
27 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which was recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive

8. EEHM~&)
B E2018F 128318 I FE - BEARQ
RIBRETE BETEEHHEYAEE
CREBERBRE E—THBIRY
BHRERM 27 - ERAEREZ AFER
FEHEEEERPER DRELA
HE T Bt AH £2020F12A31H IEF
EMPEREANESBELENLAESY
B 3% 5 B KL o

(@) BUFBITES
FAXNTHEIFFRTEENEE

directors during the year were as follows: mr
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FAT
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang HEEEE 300 300
Mr. Wong Man Fai TS A& 300 300

Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong JE 24 (GE)

(note i) - 250
Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy (note ii) P& #5 1F 4% 4 (&Fii) 300 25
900 875

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2020: Nil).

Notes:

(i) Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong passed away on
5 October 2020.

(if) Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 10 December 2020.

The above directors’ remuneration only included
remuneration during the tenure of each independent
non-executive director of the Company.

FALERMBIIFRTEETIHNE
fth 3 Bl (20204 : &) o

CEE

(i) B ¥ B 4 A 2020510 A58 #
“ﬁ'o

(i)  FEANIE ST A B20209F12310H &
BERARARFBILIFNTES -

NEEEHFMRBEARNRFEE L
FHTEETNEHANFH -
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31 December 2021

202112 A31H
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EZEZ=HEM (#2)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE
2021 20214
Mr. Wong Tat Tong HEELAE = 6,338 265 - 440 7,043
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith 388 L4
(resignation effected (BFB 2021
on 4 May 2021) 5R4E £7H) - 1,018 152 - 80 1,250
Ms. Fan Yee Man B&HE = 1,714 110 = 128 1,952
Mr. Kam Chun Pong eRAEE
Bernard (appointment (RER20215F
effected on 4 May 548 4£%)
2021) = 768 = = 23 791
= 9,838 527 = 671 11,036
2020 2020F
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEEERE - 6,293 730 - 437 7,460
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith BETEE - 2,416 403 130 232 3,181
Ms. Fan Yee Man B&HE - 1,549 236 87 116 1,988
- 10,258 1,369 217 785 12,629

FAMBEENEXRENELM
¥ B 89 2 B (20204F - f&) o

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2020: Nil).

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the FR - ANEEWERE S
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or EBMAREESMARER K
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss H% B 3k 1E /5 BE 5B A 8 (8 (20204 -
of office (2020: Nil) /) o
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group included
four (2020: three) directors. Details of the remuneration of
the five highest paid employees who are directors are set
out in note 8 above. The remuneration of Kam Chung
Pong Bernard before his appointment as an executive
director of the Company was included below. Details of
the remuneration of the remaining one (2020: two) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

9. TEmREFMES

rEBRAEERTHEERENRES
(20205 :=R) - FREEN LA TR
FHEENTMFBEEN EXHEs &
RABEEEEZEXEARNRARAITESAN
FMEINR TR - BRTUIIFARARRES
HEBITHABK—H(2020F  WA)
EaiMEENFMEBLT -

2020
2020%F
HK$'000
FAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits ¥ & - EZEI R EWFI
in kind 1,064 2157
Performance related bonuses 1B R TE AT 100 173
Equity-settled share option expense # 4t 45 & B8 % 42 5 2 - 39

Pension scheme contributions RIKE 5T 84 3K

(defined contribution schemes) (REMHRETED 24 36
2,088 2,405

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band is as follows:

FMNTFUTRENRSHMIES GrE
EMELETHAR)ARDT -

2020
20204

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T &1,500,000/% 7T 1 2
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2021412 A31H
10. INCOME TAX 10. FT8 8t
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, the BEABRENRALRO  NEEHEA
Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda. SN ERBREERSH -
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEREMNESBHDIREBEFAEE BRI 2
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits 57 AR 0% B #916.5% (20204F : 16.5% )
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one PR MEAEE—HRBARBRASE
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under MMRE THEEREERIN - ZHB
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first N A B 2,000,000 T (20204 :
HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits 2,000,000 7T) & & &R Bt /& Fl| $#28.25%
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and (20204 : 8.25% )& T Hp ER W ;a
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% F 811 #216.5% (20204 : 16.5% ) #iHi o
(2020: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland B (A b 8 BR Bt ) 2 B8 18 T3 #225% (2020
China have been calculated at the rate of 25% (2020: F:25%)MBHEFTESH -
25%).
2020
2020%F
Note HK$'000
B 5 FAET
Current — Hong Kong BEy — /B
Charge for the year FRXH 11,233 9,278
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBREEE (43) (66)
Current — Mainland China BNER — R E A
Charge for the year FRXH 6,512 6,476
Underprovision in prior years BEFEBETR 28 72
Deferred BT 2,622 (778)
Total tax charge for the year FARIB LA 20,352 14,982
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31 December 2021

2021412 A31H
10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FRB 8 (&
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit FPREELECHEFE KRB AIRANZ
before tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax HERAMIBEYZE - Hik EEEERMER
charge at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: BEBEXHZHENOT :
2020
2020%F
HK$'000
FAET
Profit before tax B B B 100,596 91,779
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory BEEBEEMEFTENTIE
tax rate 16,598 15,144
Higher tax rate applied for specific 5 7E & 15 B A 2k th 75 # B 5 7F
provinces or enacted by local R & B E
authority 3,055 2,210
Adjustments in respect of current 38 & £ & BN HA 7 18 9 9 22
tax of previous periods (43) (66)
Income not subject to tax BAERE A (893) (2,289)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR MBERAX 1,432 128
Tax losses utilised from previous — fEABEE BB MR IBEE
periods (599) (213)
Tax losses not recognised RAERNIEEE 802 68
Tax charge at the Group’s effective &N B B IR K51 & H)
tax rate I X H 20,352 14,982
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20214124318
11. DIVIDENDS 11. R E
The dividends recognised and proposed by the Company $ NAERREFER LR 2 RE N

_|

during the reporting period are as follows:

2020
2020%F
HK$’'000
FAT
Dividends recognised as distribution k& B3 i 32 & 5k 2 f% B
during the reporting period:
2019 final dividend — HK3.33 2019F REAR B — BRE R
cents per ordinary share f%3.337% 1L - 24,916
2020 interim dividend — HK1.58  2020FFF HilE 8 — TR L ®
cents per ordinary share B1.585%8 1l - 11,537
2020 final dividend — HK4.00 2020F REAR B — BRL®
cents per ordinary share fi%4.005% {1l 28,830 -
2021 interim dividend — HK3.19  2021F Kk E — BRLRE
cents per ordinary share f5%3.1975 1L 22,991 -
51,821 36,453
Dividend proposed after the end of R&EHIKR B EZ IR A S
the reporting period:
Proposed final dividend — BEAHRKRE
HK3.50 cents (2020: HK4.00 — &R E®AR3.507% Il
cents) per ordinary share (20204 : 4.00711L) 25,226 28,824
The proposed final dividend for the year ended HE2021F12A31B L FEMEH R
31 December 2021 has been calculated by reference to kR BT 2= 756\2022$3H1OE1 =)
720,731,512 shares in issue at 10 March 2022 and is 720,731 512 E HITR M HE - AR
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at RAREREERRBAFRE LI AR
the forthcoming annual general meeting. FAHEE o
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. BRRIEBRESREAEBGEER

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
720,671,000 (2020: 744,055,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
for the year is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and (i) the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and (ii)
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of all dilutive potential share options into ordinary
shares.

27

B E2021F12A31H L FE - BREX
BNDIRBEEAREAERITE AR
FRHEMNRFADETEBERINETFS
#720,671,0000% (20204 : 744,055,000
R)GTESH -

BREFANNGFEDENG QA LR
R AAREFREMNR)ERENR
FATAREFAE BT E R INE TS
2 R RIETTEPT B BB G RE A A
BERAEBRMBRRECEEZETHER
Bohn i F g 8 e
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20214124318

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. BAREEREEEAEAELGER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRI (&)
PARENT (Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share FTEERERARBERFTIRE

are based on:

2020
20204
HK$'000
FHET
Earnings B 7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity B UAsHE &I B A N 258 2 F|
holders of the parent, used in the KIS AREBERIFE AR
basic and diluted earnings per 1 & A
share calculation 80,244 76,797
’000 ‘000
T T %
Shares i)
Weighted average number of AUHEERERBINFA
ordinary shares in issue and BT RAIEHITERRINE

issuable during the year, used in  F15#
the basic earnings per share
calculation 720,671 744,055

Effect of dilution — weighted
average number of ordinary
shares:

BErE - TERMNETH
2

Share options i R 53 981
Weighted average number of AU ESREER N LR

ordinary shares, used in the % 0 - 15 81

diluted earnings per share

calculation 720,724 745,036
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

l—

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. X -BERRKE

31 December 2021 2021512A318
At 1 January 2021: 202151418

Cost KA 2,117 38,629 60,746 52,959 164,104 89,419 10,236 316,718 377,464

Accumulated depreciation and ZHAERRE

impairment (3,851) (25,615) (29,466) (22,864) (104,951) (68,563) (7,707) (204,085) (233,551)

Net carrying amount BEFE 18,266 13,014 31,280 30,095 59,153 20,856 2,529 112,633 143913
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated ~ R2021F1 818 B R

depreciation and impairment TERAE 18,266 13,014 31,280 30,095 59,153 20,856 2,529 112,633 143913
Additions RE - 25,416 25,416 399 23,116 12,656 = 36,171 61,587
Depreciation provided for the year EMEENE (530) (13,011) (13,541) (1,538) (15,963) (7,045) (1,037) (25,583) (39,124)
Disposals tE = = - - (88) (31) - (119) (119)
Exchange realignment ERAE 503 17 610 877 1,013 193 1 2,084 2,694
At 31 December 2021, net of acoumulated 52021612318 - HIK &

depreciation and impairment SHEREE 18,329 25,436 43,765 29,833 67,231 26,629 1,493 125,186 168,951
At 31 December 2021: P01 E128318

Cost A 22,845 64,081 86,926 54,612 183,755 102,465 10,256 351,088 438,014

Accumulated depreciation and ZHFERAE

impairment (4,516) (38,645) (43,161) (24,179) (116,524) (75,836) (8,763) (225,902) (269,063)
Net carrying amount BEFE 18,329 25,436 43,765 29,833 67,231 26,629 1,493 125,186 168,951
T FFH REEERERERAQR
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31 December 2021

202112 A31H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M¥E--BERRKRE(F
(Continued)
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
fFREER BHEEE
Furniture,
Leasehold Leased Plant and fixtures and Motor
land properties Total Building machinery equipment vehicles Total Total
K EE
HETH HENZ & BF ERREBHE RERGE g A &
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tikn TER T Tt T FiEn Tikn TER T
(note (b)) (note (a))
(b)) (HriEQ)
31 December 2020 2020512A318
At 1 January 2020: 202051418
Cost wA 18,877 38,291 52,168 50,646 155,793 76,535 9,587 292,561 344,729
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNERGE
impairment (8179 (10,926) (14,108) (20,770) (93,601) (62,212) (6,636) (183,219) (197,324)
Net carrying amount BEFE 10,698 27,365 38,063 29876 62,192 14,323 2,951 109,342 147,405

At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated R00F1A18 B 25

depreciation and impairment TERFE 10,698 27,365 38,063 29876 62,192 14,323 2,951 109,342 147,405
Addtions HE 6,954 121 7075 - 11,645 11,636 790 24,071 31,146
Depreciation provided for the year ERitENE (441) (14,590) (15,031) (1443 (15,729) (5,397) (1,215) (23,784) (38,815)
Disposals e - - - - (580) Y] - (582) (582)
Exchange realignment EXRE 1,05 118 1,173 1,662 1,625 296 3 3,586 4,759

At 31 Decerber 2020, net of accumulated 12020512318 + 1B

depreciafion and impairent SHFERAE 18,266 13014 31,280 30,00 59,153 20,856 252 112633 143913
At 31 December 2020: 2020127318 :
Cost i 22,117 38,629 60,746 52,959 164,104 89,419 10,236 316,718 377,464
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAERAE
impairment (3,851) (25,615) 29,466) (22,864) (104,951) (68,563) (7,707) (204,085) (233,551)
Net carrying amount BEFE 18,266 13,014 31,280 30,09% 59,158 20,856 2,629 112,633 143,913
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202112 A31H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BERRKRME(E)
(Continued)
Notes: B 5E -
(a)  The Company leases certain of its offices, warehouses and (8 ZARARMHEEETHAE BENMET
staff quarters. Leases for these assets are negotiated for BE REEENHERR2ESF 7
terms ranging from 2 to 5 years with extension or EEAS R MAEEENREAE
termination options and all the lease payments are fixed. ¥ o
(o)  Included in the Group’s leasehold land and building are two (o) AEEMMEE i REFE M EZR
warehouses in Mainland China, with the costs of FEAEEE - KA 5 /653,000
HK$653,000 and HK$601,000, respectively, which the 7 7T }%601,00078 7T - A 5 B K B HUAS
Group was not able to obtain the real estate ownership EHEMBER ZMEEEERBAE
certificate. The two warehouses were fully depreciated in FE2HE-

the prior years.

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B EE
Trademark
[k
HK$’000
TET
31 December 2021 2021F12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated R2021F1 A1H BB A - 1%
amortisation BT #y 330
Amortisation provided during the year FNET I 5 (118)
Exchange realignment E 32X 8
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 220
At 31 December 2021: R2021F12A31H
Cost DN 1,202
Accumulated amortisation Rt #H (982)
Net carrying amount BREFE 220
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20214124318
14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 14. B EE (&)
Trademark
R
HK$’000
FHET
31 December 2020 2020%12 A31H
Cost at 1 January 2020, 2020F1 A1 H MR A - 0Bk
net of accumulated amortisation RET 419
Amortisation provided during the year FREHREH (110)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 3 B 21
At 31 December 2020 #20204E12 4318 330
At 31 December 2020: 202012 8318 :
Cost (DN 1,164
Accumulated amortisation RETHE (834)
Net carrying amount REFE 330
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31 December 2021

2021412 A31H
15. INVENTORIES 15. &
2020
20204
HK$'000
FHET
Raw materials R A 99,450 61,480
Work-in-progress £ & i 954 776
Finished goods K & 66,202 55,703
166,606 117,959
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. EZ E R KA
2020
20204
HK$'000
FHET
Trade receivables B 5 e IR 133,002 119,895
Impairment DERE] (8,211) (8,781)
124,791 111,114

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where the Group
normally trades in cash on delivery. The credit periods
generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control team to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBERARPINZRZIEREEIA
FEEAE ENEFABEFFEEIN

2

o ZEHI— MR A30EI20K - BNER

URARSEERE AEBEHIER
ZHARBERKRIE  ARIEEEE
NEAREEERR - BHREHHERE
BEHmT - AKBTENEE SRR
RBFZEHFATAERRKFELEME
R - BB EYKIAEL TFE -

—

=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2021
202112 A31H

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16.
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

EZEWREGE)
B 5 AGOR 2 RIS DT (%R AT
Ny EREHE BT

2020

20204

HK$’'000

FAT

Within 30 days 30K A 67,730 63,893
31 to 60 days 31Z60K 35,056 30,455
61 to 90 days 61Z=90K 13,438 9,517
91 to 120 days 91E120K 6,765 5,741
121 to 180 days 1212180k 1,174 535
Over 180 days 8 1B180K 628 973
124,791 111,114

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

BHRIGEREEBERERESWT

2020

2020%F

HK$'000

FAET

At beginning of year R F ) 8,781 8,085
Impairment losses recognised EERBEEIE 373 835

Impairment losses reversed BERERE (695) (614)
Amount written off as uncollectible 27~ & U [B] # $4 &9 2% 18 (482) —
Exchange realignment bE H, 38 B 234 475
At end of the year RER 8,211 8,781
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16. EZEWRIE (£)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region and customer
type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. During the vyear, the
expected loss rate for certain customers that are
credit-impaired are assessed specifically by management.
For trade receivables aged more than one year past due,
management has not observed objective evidence of
financial difficulties of the debtors and has been taking

REREAHORBBEREETRE
D UFFERMEEER - BEXHE
RAREABRUBERANZEER, D
HETHME (BB s R REFER) M
BN PABEE - R ERBRAAE
MEER EERHEINBEAHAE
MAEBBESE B HRERRKEHE
GHEANEERAIEER - FR - ET
EFHNEMERX(EEERE) THE
BEEMNFE -BHER—FNES
EWHRIR EREIABRINEREE
FRBEBAAMBEENMRIEEE
EEm - AHEASRERARERMEE
WE 5 R FIAN(E SRR E
T

credit risk mitigating measures. Set out below is the
information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s
trade receivables using a provision matrix:

2021 20214

Credit impaired receivables 1= B J& (& & Ug 7 18 100% 6,317 6,317

Trade receivables aged: B S EWGRIAE 7 RER
Current to 30 days past Bl HA == 280 HABOK

due 0.40% 122,743 491

31 to 60 days past due # HIB1Z=60K 10.61% 1,564 166
61 to 90 days past due 8 Hi61 290K 24.58% 1,017 250
91 to 120 days past due A HI91 = 120K 39.49% 195 77
121 to 180 days past due  #HI121E180K 57.83% 230 133
Over 180 days past due B HA#8 38 180K 83.01% 936 777

133,002 8,211
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16. EZEWFIE (&)
Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected
rate amount credit loss
BHEE BHEE
EE = fRE#&E &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
2020 20204
Credit impaired receivables 1= B J&l (& fE I 5K 8 100.00% 6,800 6,800
Other trade receivables HE 5 EWRFHIE
aged: 2 BRHER
Current to 30 days past B B 2= 180 HA30K
due 0.51% 108,416 557
31 to 60 days past due # Hi31 260K 10.01% 2,348 235
61 to 90 days past due # Hi61 £ 90K 22.06% 467 103
91 to 120 days past due B HI91 = 120K 34.26% 216 74
121 to 180 days past due  #Hi121=180K 40.00% 155 62
Over 180 days past due 180 HA #8 58180k 63.63% 1,493 950
119,895 8,781

17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17. A RIE - RE R H B WK IA
RECEIVABLES

2020

20204

HK$'000

FHET

Prepayments TE A+ R IE 12,135 7,660
Deposits birgea 3,300 3,446
Other receivables H h pE W3k 1B 2,752 4,554
18,187 15,660

Less: Non-current portion B FEBNERER (1,530) (852)
Current portion Bl EA =R 43 16,657 14,808
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

17.

18.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2021
and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CEMROE RERE R KE

(4

STA LR SRt E E B I e
Rk EaARENEKRRIES
B8 o 20214 K2020%12A31H @ & 18
BETIERML -

CHRERREEEY

2021 2020

2021 20204

HK$°000 HK$’'000

F#& T FHET

Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHE & 191,892 176,807
Time deposits TR 80,222 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents HehREEFEED 272,114 276,807

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$68,100,000 (2020: HK$57,556,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposits rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RBREHR 2EEUARBAENR
& KR 17 4 8 9 5l /68,100,000 JT
(20204 : 57,556,000 7T) > A R T g
BRLBEMER A REFERH
BICHNE B IR R 1) (K TE ~ B IE R ATEE
EEBATE) AEBEEABBERELE
HNEXEBRRIT BARBHBABHAM

ETROTRESREBEERRITFERMN IR
FRREA B - 52 HE B KA 7
BIBAEMEATE  BRFAKEHAKES
FBRME - WK% B 58 8 E H 17 50R =X
REAE - |RITERIDTFRREE R
N BRI 48 38 4 RO SR RO SR 1T o
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31 December 2021

2021412 A31H
19. TRADE PAYABLES 19. EZ ERRKIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the BEORNANBZEESTRERAH)
invoice date is as follows: N
2020
2020%F
HK$'000
FAET
Within 1 month 118 A A 87,452 50,134
1 to 2 months 1221E A 1,768 275
2 to 3 months 2Z3E A 706 498
Over 3 months 8 iB31E A 14 688
89,940 51,595
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are B5ENRBRRE R —MRMNI0EOKX
normally settled within 30 to 60 days. WEE T o
20. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EstRERHEMENSKIE
2020
2020%F
Notes HK$'000
B 5 FAET
Accruals JERTFRTE 40,191 38,266
Contract liabilities EHEE (a) 1,261 841
Other payables H {th & 1 58 (b) 2,802 5,446
44,254 44,553
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31 December 2021

202112 A31H
20. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EEtREBER LA RIE ()

(Continued)

Notes: B 5 -

(a)  Contract liabilities represent advance payments received (a) AHBBEEIAEEZINRXERMAZE
from customers from the Beverage Solutions segment for R B IRS 2B A = P YERFE A FRIA -
the Group to deliver the tea products. The increase in the EHBEENEEZEGEERFRNNRER
contract liabilities is mainly attributed to the demand of the ke
tea products during the year.

Movements in contract liabilities during the year are as FREHEENESHOT :

follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At the beginning of the year RE) 841 1,399
Additions NE 3,256 1,135
Revenue recognised during the year* F R = (2,836) (1,693)
At the end of the year RER 1,261 841

*

Revenue recognised during the year that was
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period amounted to HK$841,000 for the
year ended 31 2021 (2020:

HK$1,399,000).

December

The transaction prices allocated to remaining performance
obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which are
expected to be recognised within one year as at
31 December 2021 amounted to HK$1,261,000 (2020:
HK$841,000).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

* ?Eﬁé%zézomimﬂsm IEF
RBEEHVFAEGLOEED
FRER Y E - & 57 A841,00008
7T (20204F : 1,399,000 7T) °

>T¢+

PEERTROEENZIE (REfish
%% 5 EARTEES R — F

7T <2020¢ : 841,000/7T) °

H b FE A FRIEAL A EH S
@A -

FHHBR A=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

21. fT&E4€mIT A

Liabilities =N
2020
20204
HK$'000
FAT
Forward currency contracts REE®EH 443 491

The Group has entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures. These
forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge
purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging currency
derivatives amounting to HK$833,000 (2020: HK$718,000)
were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year.

22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

AEBEURERPEESHUER
HELER ZERPINESEDRET
AREHER  WBABREATES
EoFEHAERTETENAFEES
833,000/ 7T (20204 : 718,000 7T) &
RERNGEEBRRRTPNRE -

22, FFRRITHER

2020
20204
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity  HK$’000
BRA X
(%) | HI A FA&T
Current Bl A
Trust receipt loans ERBIEER
— unsecured — EER 1.5% 2022 3,174 2.35-2.60 2021 12,094
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

23. LEASE LIABILITIES

The carrying amount of

lease

liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

23. HEE®

FRAMERENEREERESBERET

2020
2020%F
Note HK$'000
B 5 FAET
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1BBERMEE 13,362 27,675
New leases WHEE 25,416 121
Accretion of interest recognised & X #E 2 & &I B 18 A0
during the year 760 998
COVID-19-related rent i A4 T HICOVID-19
concessions from lessors HEESRR - (619)
Payments (NE: (13,624) (14,933)
Exchange realignment bE W 38 & 17 120
Carrying amount at R12A31HEMEREE
31 December 25,931 13,362
Analysed into: DR
Current portion BIVER & 9 12,593 8,427
Non-current portion JERNEREB &> 13,338 4,935
25,931 13,362

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 34 to the financial statements.

T & {5 00 B B9 9 47 1 B 5 3 R B 04
BE -
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31 December 2021

20214F12 4318
23. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 23. HE&E (&)
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to REZEREBEFEN BN T :

leases are as follow:

2020
2020%F
HK$’'000
FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HERBENE 760 998
Depreciation charge of right-of-use (£ B EETE L H
assets 13,541 15,031
Expense relating to short-term EHEHHEER
leases 681 1,191
COVID-19-related rent concessions 1 A 45 F FICOVID-1948 B8
from lessors HE R % - (619)
Total amount recognised RIE=ERN B
in profit or loss 14,982 16,601
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EEHIE

EXHAERBEREENFAZESWT

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets
during the year are as follows:

FEEHREAE

Deferred tax liabilities

20201 A1H
RERNFTA
1 (M sE10)

At 1 January 2020

Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year (note 10)

Exchange realignment

6,295

(581)
103

At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 7202012 4318 Kk20214F

RERH
E (M sE10)

Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of Bak2REL
profit or loss during the year (note 10)

Exchange realignment

5,817

1,974
90

At 31 December 2021 7202112 H31H

7,881

FER RERERZERBRQA
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

168

Deferred tax assets

24, EERIE (&

FEEREEE

At 1 January 2020 20201418 7 1,972 481 2,460
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the RERGIX), & A

consolidated statement of profit or loss FAEBmKRL

during the year (note 10) EERIIE

(K 7E10) 1 (44) 242 197

Exchange realignment TE 3, 8 & - 125 - 125
At 31 December 2020 and at #2020F12 A31H

1 January 2021 K2021%F1A1H 6 2,053 723 2,782
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated R RJILRAEE

statement of profit or loss during the KB IA

year (note 10) (Mt 10) (5) (369) (274) (648)
Exchange realignment IE 5, 38 & = 60 = 60
At 31 December 2021 #R2021F12A31H 1 1,744 449 2,194
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

24, EEBIE(E)
BEEREEE (&)
RS ETECHELEERERE
ERBSHRRENEY RHBREM
TOAEEMNECHEERSNOT

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET

Net deferred tax liabilities AR A B AR K W AR

recognised in consolidated WIELETIEE B FHE

statement of financial position (7,881) (5,817)
Net deferred tax assets recognised 44 B %5k K #E R

in consolidated statement of IR IEE BEF 5

financial position

2,194 2,782

(5,687) (3,035)

The Group has unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$29,186,000 (2020: HK$25,087,000), subject
to the agreement by relevant tax authorities, that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the Mainland China Corporate Income Tax
Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

AEBERBAELENRKEARBAERS
29,186,000/ 7T (20204 : 25,087,000/
TTNEARHBATNGHRERBR G A F
) AERMAFERELRERZ QA
Z AR RPE R A o B B A B TR B 18
MMBARCEIE —BRER ELXER
T )R] FR A 3 55 B TR B 18 RO M R
BIR BRERZTEHERDETH
HEE -

BIEFE AR ERSRE) £F
Bl A MoK S M) NI IR B R E M N B
HEIRMRBABKI0% MBI 2R
E B2008F1A1H &8 &£ & - I @& A »
2007 12H31BE R B A - BINFIRE
EMBREAREEREPBE AN E BB D
o OAREEARENTENSRE - ALEERN
HEARER10% - At - AEBEAEHZS
7 AR B A 4 K 7 & BT B A ] 3E20084F 1 A
1R REAEEF T2 IR R EBMIEN
it o
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

24,

25.

170

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amounts
of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised were approximately
HK$130,715,000 and HK$104,837,000 at 31 December
2021 and 2020, respectively.

24, EERIE(E)

EERBEBEE(E)

20214 K2020%128318 - # £ 3t A
£ B 7 R B P K S A BT B A B ZB AR
BB KRE L&A MAZTHENR
BRELHE -EERAE ZSWEBAF
R B RAKAEED RZERF - R
20214F 202012 A31H * B B K
H B B A R AR & A B8 i I A gkt TR
EEBEEENEREEZERES AL
#130,715,0007% 7T % 104,837,000/ JT ©

SHARE CAPITAL 25. | A
2020
2020%F
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: ETE ¢
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,0008% & i% ™ {50.10
HK$0.10 each 7B TT B R R 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITEEE:
720,731,512 (2020: 720,444,312) 720,731,5120% (20204 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each  720,444,312)%) & X E {£0.10
7B TT B R R 72,073 72,044
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
A summary of movements in the Company’s authorised
and issued share capital is as follows:

25. RA (&

RARENEER B BITRAEHHE N
B

Number of
shares  Share capital
i g g 7
Notes HK$’000
B 5T FH&T
Authorised: ETE ¢
At 1 January 2020, at 20201 H1H -
31 December 2020, 7202012 A831H -
at 1 January 2021 and R2021F1A1H &
at 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1H 763,937,312 76,394
Issue of shares upon TEERERETRND
exercise of share options (@) 3,107,000 310
Repurchase and cancellation & [@ & 5 #4 A% (5
of shares (b) (46,600,000) (4,660)
At 31 December 2020 and 2020912 A31H &
at 1 January 2021 202141 A1H 720,444,312 72,044
Issue of shares upon TR ERZEITRG
exercise of share options (@ 287,200 29
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12831H 720,731,512 72,073
Notes: B 5

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
subscriptions right attaching to 287,200 (2020: 3,107,000)
share options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$0.594 per share, resulting in the issue of 287,200
(2020: 3,107,000) ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.10
each (“Shares”) at a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$170,000 (2020: HK$1,845,000). An
amount of HK$378,000 (2020: HK$4,107,000) was
transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

() M B F2021F12A31H 1 F &
287,20017 (20204 : 3,107,00017) 17 B&
i 8 W& BT B9 58 B 1 12 SR B (B B IR0.594
BT ETE - R 17287,200% (2020
£ : 3,107,0000% ) & % ™ {80.10/% 7T &Y
L@ ([lm]) WESIHE S REBLRE
(#0 B B9 2 A1) 170,0007% JT (20204 :
1,845,000 JT) ° 378,000/ It (2020
£ 1 4,107,000/ 7T) B9 R IE A 1T (50 B8 R
BEREREREBESZERMODEER -
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B 7% ¥R R MY & (&)
31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
repurchased 46,600,000 Shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange at a total consideration (before expenses) of
HK$52,924,000, which were cancelled during that year.
The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the par value of the repurchased Shares so cancelled. The
premium and transaction costs paid on the repurchase of
the shares of HK$48,264,000 and HK$246,000,
respectively, were charged to the share premium account.

26. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 81 to 82.

172

(a)

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to the written resolution of the then sole
shareholder of the Company dated 25 August 2017,
the Company reallocated its share premium account
to the contributed surplus by way of reduction of the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account to nil and transfer of the credit
amount arising from the share premium reduction to
the contributed surplus.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2021

25, R (&
GERRC-)

(o)

REZE2020F128318 IEFE » AR A
E BB B 32 BT B2 [8146,600,000% B 15 -
4 X (8 (30 Br B X Al) /52,924,000
T ZERBERZFREN - AR A
EBITRADERFUFHE ZERROE
BT R - BRRGFAOEERR
SR D Bl 548,264,000/ 7T &% 246,000
BT BRI R ERF R -

26. f#1E
AEBMRAEERENEENEBERE
BE S 8N ES1E82E Mk A 2 8 8
xK25) 0

(a)

BAER

BIEA R R E B — AR R 201746
SHSHBMEMEEAREER - ARF]
BERMDEEREFTIREZAAR
B AABBROEERZZIE
ReBEHRET  WREBRBKRG
EEMEAZERSEEREEZAA

Bth -
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

26. RESERVES (Continued) 26. f#fE (2
(b) Statutory reserve funds (b) ZELATER

Pursuant to the relevant Mainland China rules and
regulations, the subsidiaries which are domestic
enterprises in Mainland China are required to
transfer no less than 10% of their profits after
taxation, as determined under Mainland China
accounting regulations and their respective articles of
association, to the reserve funds until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before the
dividend distribution to shareholders.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
share capital when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
currency exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

Other reserve
The Group’s other reserve represents the difference
between the amounts by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid to acquire an additional interest
in a subsidiary.

RIE B A B BRI R AR 1F
SPERMAELCENME QR
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27.

174

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
similar to the terms of the Share Option Scheme except
that () no further options could be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme established prior to the
Listing Date; and (i) the exercise price and the exercise
period of the share options are different as further
detailed below.

Eligible participants of the Schemes include, amongst
others, the Company’s executive directors and other
employees of the Group. The Schemes were approved
and adopted on 15 December 2017 (“Adoption Date”).
The Share Option Scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
Adoption Date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Schemes is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the Listing
Date. The maximum number of shares issued and
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Share Option Schemes within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 27.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates which result in the total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings of the
Company.

Share Option Scheme

The offer of a grant of share option under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 7 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme is
determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options. The exercise price of share options under
the Share Option Scheme is determinable by the
directors, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer of the share options, which must be a business day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 27. R (&)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, no
options have been grated or agreed to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is HK$0.594 per share and the
share options are exercisable commencing on the day
faling on the Listing Date and ending on the day

BREE(E)

H E2020%F K2021F12A318 1L F E -
MEREERETIRLXBFERHE
A% #E o

BERARBENBRESE
REERAARAEENBERETE  BR
ENITEEAER0.594B T HBKRE
AREMAMEAREEER ETAES
mtEER — BT -

immediately before the tenth anniversary of the Listing
Date.

FA - REERAF R E B RER S
EREERRITEMNBERERT

The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were outstanding during the year:

2020
20204F
Weighted
average
exercise Number of
price options
s
TE(E  ERESEA
HKS$ per
share
BRET
At 1 January »1A18 0.594 348,800 0.594 3,553,800
Exercised during the year R FERITE 0.594 (287,200) 0.594 (3,107,000)
Forfeited during the year 7 E AR IR 0.594 (61,600) 0.594 (98,000)
At 31 December »W12A31R8 0.594 - 0.594 348,800

RNE E2021F12A31B IFFE - 217
ERERTEBENNEFIOREAE
B%1.043% 7T (20204F : 1.08/6 ) °

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised for the year ended
31 December 2021 was HK$1.04 (2020: HK$1.08) per
share.
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27. RO <4 (&
HRDMRENERES B (F)

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme granted to the Company’s executive directors
and other employees of the Group as at 31 December

MR2021F12A31H B F AR A EITE
ERAEBEMEENE XN AREER
BRETAOFBHNDT

2021 are set below:

As at  Exercised Forfeited As at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant price 2021 the year the year 2021 Exercise period
R20214 R20214
ARA BREAH 1RE 1A18 FRTE FRRK 12A318  1&H
Other employees 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 348,800 (287,200) (61,600) — 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021
HitES 2018548198 0594 7T 202095118 E202145 4108

No equity settled share option expense was recognised
during the year (2020: HK$593,000).

The 287,200 share options exercised during the year
(2020: 3,107,000) resulted in the issue of 287,200 (2020:
3,107,000) ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10
each and new share capital of HK$29,000 (2020:
HK$310,000) and share premium of HK$519,000 (2020:
HK$5,642,000), as further detailed in Note 25.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no share
options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

F R E RIS IR X (2020
£ : 593,000 7T ) °

% 1A 17 £287,20017 (20204 : 3,107,000
1) B % 8 38 B 2% 17287,2000% (20204 :
3,107,0008% ) & IR E1E0.10/8 JL B A 1 &)
T3 % - 0 EE A TR 4529,0007% T (2020
£ : 310,000/ 7T) K& % 17 4 {E519,0007%
7T (20204F : 5,642,000/% 7T ) (40 Fft 5E 2577
) o

MR2021F12831H » A A Al & XA G %
ERBERE S T EERERETE -
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 28. mMEBHERERMHEE
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) XEEFBEEXS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of HK$25,416,000 (2020:
HK$121,000) and HK$25,416,000 (2020:
HK$121,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for premises.

B E2021F12A31BILFE - A&
ERMENHRELTHES RESFER
BEEERHEABNIBRELAE
25,416,000/ 7T (20204 : 121,000
7 Jr) }25,416,0007% 7T (20204 :
121,000/ 7T) °

(b) Change in liabilities arising from financing (b) REMETHNEENEH
activities
The table below details the cash flows and non-cash TRAMIEAEBREBE T
changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from WEBEMNRERERIIERCEH-

BRTXREESIN  AEEXER
BRBNAEMEFRREES-

financing activities. Except as disclosed below, there
were no non-cash changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities.

20214

2021

At 31 December 2020 and MR2020%12A318 &

at 1 January 2021 2021F1A1H 12,094 13,362
Financing cash flows MERSRKE (8,920) (13,624)
Non-cash changes FEH & &

New leases s = 25,416
Accretion of interest MEEE - 760
Effect of changes in foreign  [ERE &

exchange rates - 17

At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 3,174 25,931
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

28. FEHEREBERME (&)

(Continued)
(b) Change in liabilities arising from financing (b) REMETBNAEBENEE (&)
activities (Continued)
2020 20204F
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
FFERITEN HEBRE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
At 1 January 2020 20201 H1H 26,154 27,675
Financing cash flows BERESRE (14,060) (14,933)
Non-cash changes I % # E
New leases FHEE — 121
Accretion of interest MEE K — 998
COVID-19-related rent A4 T HCOVID-1978 &
concessions from lessors bR — (619)
Effect of changes in foreign  [EXEEFHHFE
exchange rates - 120
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 12,094 13,362
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29.

30.

180

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the
Group was not able to obtain the real estate ownership
certificate for two warehouses located in the Mainland
China with the costs of HK$653,000 and HK$601,000,
respectively, these two warehouses were fully depreciated
in prior years. As the Group completed the construction
of the
without obtaining the necessary construction planning
permit and construction commencement permit prior to
the construction and did not complete the filing of the
necessary construction completion reports with the
relevant authorities, the Group may be requested by the
relevant authorities to demolish the construction and is
subject to a maximum penalty amounting to
RMB1,321,000 (equivalent to HK$1,569,000) (2020:
RMB1,321,000 (equivalent to HK$1,569,000)). Having
considered the current practice of the relevant authorities
and the advice from the Group’s legal counsel, the
directors of the Company believe that it is not probable
that the relevant authorities will impose the penalty. In
addition, the directors of the Company considered the
cost of demolishment of the two warehouses is not
material to the Group. Accordingly, no provision for the
relevant liability has been made.

relevant warehouses and commenced usage

COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

29.

30.

RAREE

B 220204 K2021F12A318 It F & -
7N 5 B 7R AL Bh AR AL A H B R i Ak AR
Il 5653,0007% 7T 5&2601,000/% T H) & & B
SRWEMEREE ZMEAREERE
MEEEBFTE - ETHNEXREBRE
I 5 56 56 A A - AN & B R A 1E e T AT ER
SHAENERIREASTIREETRE
HE L EF Al - IR oK T2 AK 1R) A A A A 4B IR P
FH®THRE AL ABERETEEX
REEFHZIBERETR A 2 E 5
K& e E AR 1,321,00000 (M8 & ©
1,569,000/ 7T)(2020%F @ A R ¥
1,321,0007T (48 & #1,569,000/8 7T)) °
KEEBBAERNERMERAEBEE
FEEARENER®E AAREEHAE
MR B BE I S SR & S K - o -
ARAREERBIFEZMNE A EMHK AR
HAEBUYAEKN - Bt - WEREHAE
EET IR -

R
REENRERHRRE THEARALRE -

2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Contracted, but not provided for BLATNIEE BRI B R
in respect of:
Property, plant and equipment E N 9,632 4,329

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021



q - 'I I | .
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR B B ()

31 December 2021
202112 A31H

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following
transactions based on mutually agreed terms with
related parties during the year:

1. BB ARG

(@) BRUEFTHHRREMID FAFLD
RP - RFERBERI RFER- K
SEEREBTE NIREEMEDBE
MIRREITHIR S

2020
20204
HK$’000

B & TATT

Lease expenses paid to a MRBB AR X NHWHEE
related company (note) X (M 5E)

1,860

1,395

Note: Mr. Wong Tat Tong (“Mr. Wong”), an executive
director and the beneficial shareholder of the
Company, is the controlling shareholder of this
related company. The tenancy agreement was
terminated on 1 October 2021.

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group

M ARARMITEEREERREE
2RETELLED) RLBEH AT
B #E AR BUER o A & 1 3 102021 4F
10A1H &Ik -

(b) *EEMEEEBASNHHN

2020

20204

HK$'000

FAT

Short term employee benefits HHEB®RA 14,778 15,530

Equity-settled share option expense LA B& 1 45 & &9 B8 I B9 2 = 256
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFHEIME R

(defined contribution schemes) (R EHKETE)) 743 839

15,521 16,625

Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration are disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statement.

AREFNREIETHRENFTMWF
15 RE WK SR EE ©
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 32. €T H — RERED
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHER SE2RTANEKREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period wn

are as follows:

Financial assets EMEE

Loans and receivables

BERRERRIE

2020

2020%F

HK$’'000

FAT

Trade receivables 2 5 EWFIR 124,791 111,114
Financial assets included in FTATENRIE - e REAM LY

prepayments, deposits and HENERMEE

other receivables 5,498 8,000

Cash and cash equivalents HehREEED 272,114 276,807

402,403 395,921
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. €@ I B — ®RE3 &5 (&)

(Continued)
Financial liabilities ctREE
As at 31 December 2021 72021%F12831H
Derivative financial instruments T4 & @ T A 443 - 443
Trade payables B 5 kR - 89,940 89,940
Financial liabilities included in T AERT R R E b fE

accruals and other payables NRENsRad - 32,916 32,916
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t 8 R 17 & % - 3,174 3,174
Lease liabilities HEEBE = 25,931 25,931

443 151,961 152,404

As at 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
Derivative financial instruments T4 £ g T A 491 — 491
Trade payables B 5 R 5IE - 51,595 51,595
Financial liabilities included in FTAEERIE R E M E

accruals and other payables FREHNEHEE - 30,977 30,977
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &8 iR 17 & - 12,094 12,094
Lease liabilities HEBE - 13,362 13,362

491 108,028 108,519
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33.

184

FAIR VALUES AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
accruals and other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments or
the effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits
have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using the rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
Derivative financial instruments, including foreign currency
swaps, are measured using valuation techniques similar to
swap models, The
models incorporate various market observable inputs
including credit quality of counterparty and exchange
rates. The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
swaps are the same as their fair values.

using present value calculations.
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33. FAIR VALUES AND FAIR VALUE 33.
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd)
Fair value hierarchy
There were no financial assets measured at fair value as
at 31 December 2020 and 2021.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Liabilities measured at fair value

Derivative financial fTEemIA
instruments
As at 31 December 2021 20215F
12H31H -
As at 31 December 2020 20205
12H31H —

EMIANAFERIFEER
(%)

NFERER
20202021412 A31H 7 £ L A F &
ArEMNEREEE-

TERGHALAEEESR T AN A FENE
B4

BAFETEHNER

443 - 443

491 - 491

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

ERN - F-ERASF-_EBrESEELA
FTEAE BFE=ZBIIEEAfEBLS
MEENRSREE(2020F © &) -
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34.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash
and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. Management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other

4. AR EEEEREE

AEENTIZSRIABRERE MRS
ZEYVRFERTER - ZFERIA
ZEIBEMAMASENEZETRE

BASENSRMIAEANTIEARR
FERR - INERR  FEERBRERREE
TREE - i%AﬁuTIHﬁ%ﬁ AMUAT PR
Bt 2 &8 & B A BUR

A = & b
FMERERE-"EHERIANRKRESR
BRI REHRMSMNEESHMEE - A&
lﬁﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬁi%ﬂf“ibﬂ T BHEAE
B BRITERERE EEEERMNE
ﬁ:]ﬂ(lil VEERERERBEHEAFNEX
g o

TRBBEME L2 BRI TRIER
T AKEBRBAUFHHEH AR

variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax REEHNERE CGBAYFERITERD
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings). TR o
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/(decrease)
basis point in profit before tax
22 b
(TB%) Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ*ﬂ bu/(/ﬁd\
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FAT
HK$ BT 50 226 176
HK$ T (50) (226) (176)
RMB AR 50 86 70
RMB AR (50) (86) (70)
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34 GEEBREEEERKE(EZ)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by
operating units
functional currencies. The majority of the Group’s foreign
currency purchase transactions are denominated in US
dollar (“US$”). On the other hand,
disbursements are mainly denominated in HK$ and RMB.
As HK$ is pegged to US$, the Company does not
anticipate significant movements in the US$/HK$
exchange rates and the exposure on foreign currency risk
is not material.

in currencies other than the unit’s

the sales and

The Group’s risk management principles with regard to its
foreign currency denominated monetary assets, liabilities,
commitments, and cash flows is to match as far as
possible the values of such assets and cash flows against
similarly denominated liabilities and cash flows. Decisions
on either holding net short or long positions in foreign
currency denominated monetary assets or liabilities are
taken on case-by-case basis and by taking into
consideration the amount and duration of the expenses,
market volatility, economic trends and requirements of the
business.

TR HFH ERERERERAA

S H5 L B

AEFBRAGRZEEKRR ZERART
EHNEEEUNAENREEE NI 2 E
BETEEMESL AKBEAXHOINE
RBXZGUAET(ETDFAE-Z—7
- HELRIBEIAEERBTREARE
AHE - ARB TR R TR - A AR A
ELABTHNERSAGHRERE
B FTEBROINERRIETERX -

REBHUIMEAENERBEE - 8F -
EEREeRENRREERR  5F
ErkzEEELR R REEBBLUGE
MEBEEMRERENEE REBEFINE
AAENEBREERRETAFEREX
HRERE  DREARERL A
M ceB MR  Tm5KE  EES8
EREBHBERMMEDL -
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. BHRABEEERERBEK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SRR (E)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end TREBVRBMEPREMBEHAME S
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in BAEBRT  NEE AR A& T &
the Euro (“EUR”), Swiss Franc (“SFR”) and RMB exchange Bt (BTl T AR ([3R BB &R A
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the REEXNSEAEEHNFRE -

Group’s profit before tax.

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/(decrease)
exchange rate in profit before tax
HEEEAS
(N E&) BR B A 0% R 18 0O &)
2020
2020%F
HK$’000
FET
If HK$ weakens against EUR & BT BT E 5% 163 406
If HK$ strengthens against EUR  fi#i & /8 7T % BT FHE (5%) (163) (406)
If HK$ weakens against SFR fmE BT in B E 5% 201 36
If HK$ strengthens against SFR il & /8 7T 5% I BF FHE (5%) (201) (36)
If HK$ weakens against RMB WEBLLARKE
1E 5% 171 417
If HK$ strengthens against RMB  fifi & 78 7T 3 A R #&
1B (5%) (171) 417)
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. FEERRBREEEERBE(EZ)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2021

Trade receivables* 2 P rWHIE =
Financial assets included in HABNE B
prepayments, deposits and R fth fE Y 500

other receivables — normal" WA BEE —

FERRE
AEBEERRUTEEERINE=7
ETRS - ARBEBRERTE  FTEREE
EMETRINER HEARIEER
BERRF o MO AEEFEEREWFOR
e WEmMHBRAREEKRAR -

B AR R FRE TR

TRINTREASENGEERRENEER
EELBEERRIIEHEOZARRE
TEZEUNEBEHNERABKE BRIEFHM
EXMMEBAFTRBEZRNAKE ) UKk
R12A3TEHMFE RS R -EE2EBRESEA
MNemEERBTMARE -

R2021F12H31H

- - 133,002 133,002

E&E 5,498 = = = 5,498
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 272,114 - - - 272,114
277,612 = = 133,002 410,614
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% AR By B ()

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. BEREEEERKE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERR(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BARBRELH 7R (E)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020F12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A B 1
FEER 2HBEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£—-8 E-H EF=R EL A% @
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Trade receivables* B 5 RN FIE - - - 119,895 119,895

Financial assets included in AN &
prepayments, deposits and R fth fE Y 510
other receivables — normal"  HSEEE —

a4 8,000 - - - 8,000

Cash and cash equivalents ReRReZEEY 276,807 - - - 276,807

284,807 - - 119,895 404,702

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * MAEBERABCREZENE S ERK
simplified approach for impairment, information based on BME REBEBEEBMMETHERR
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 16. MSE163R 55 -

" The credit quality of the financial assets included in " FRATER IR - e REAMEKRRIEDY
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered CREENEELE=ZTHA®E B
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no EEAMBREREENEERRBEVS
information indicating that the financial assets had a ERLAR KRB MEFEFERAEE] T
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. AlemMEENEEGRHAEARIRIE] -

Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34 GEEBREEEERKE(EZ)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020 (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry segment. As at the end of the reporting period,
the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as
16% (2020: 18%) and 45% (2020: 41%) of the Group’s
total trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
debtor and the five largest debtors, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate
funds to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer terms. In the management of liquidity risk, the
Group has been maintaining a cash pooling system where
excess liquid is centralised internally through inter-group
accounts. Depending on the specific requirements of each
funding agreement, funding for the Group’s operating
companies may be sourced directly from the Group’s
bankers or indirectly through the Company.

EERE(E)
BRABRBEREL SR (E)

R2020%F 12431 H (4)
HRASEEELERTBEEERTNE
ZHEATRS  FIUNEZERR -EES
RRERDERE /HFH - BRI RT
¥RRER - NMEBEAKR  AEEBHF—
EWMEESYFRR 25 &16% (2020
F 1 18% ) }45% (20204F : 41% ) - Ty JiE
WAEBERBELENRREBARRKR
EEARGKIE -

BRASEXREE S EKRAENEER
BEE - T EEE REEMBEHR
ff 1642 B8 -

REE S E R

AEENEESRBRERCES MR
HEHERARPESE R - REER
PEcRAR AEE-BEEFRSMER
B EBEEARRMBERPRAMTY
TRHGBORDES -RFBZESWHH
MEARERME AKENZEQAA
EERASENAERRITHBEEBEBA
NRAMEBER -
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31 December 2021

20214124318

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. HEEBREEBERBEK(Z)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESREM(Z)
The following tables show the maturity profile of the TR BERRAEAEBSHAE
Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting BIEEHRLBA RO BN -

period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments.

31 December 2021 20214 12H31H

Trade payables 2 5 RIE 89,940 - - 89,940
Financial liabilities A A RUIA K
included in accruals  Eth fB {4 5k 1B
and other payables MEemAaE 32,916 - - 32,916
Interest-bearing bank & 2 88 17 18 3
borrowings 3,174 - - 3,174
Lease liabilities HERE 3,532 9,061 13,338 25,931
129,562 9,061 13,338 151,961
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31 December 2021

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder’s value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to the
shareholder, return capital to shareholder or issue new
shares. The Group is required to comply with certain
externally imposed capital requirements as set out in
certain banking facility letters. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

TR HFH ERERERERAA

2021412 A31H
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. BEEBREEEERKE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRAM(EZ)
31 December 2020 2020412531H
On demand/
Less than 3 to 12 More than
3 Months months 1 year Total
REk,/
SEAR 3E12fE A ESNES &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F& T FHET FETT F& T
Trade payables 2 5 A RUR 51,595 — — 51,595
Financial liabilities AR HRIE R
included in accruals H b & 5018
and other payables NeEmasE 30,977 — — 30,977
Interest-bearing bank & B R 17 &%
borrowings 12,094 - - 12,094
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,290 5,137 4,935 13,362
97,956 5,137 4,935 108,028
Capital management EXREE

AEEEREANEZAEREREAS
BEERHEZE UHTREEARAL XN
XFEEBLEERSKRREE-

AEEBEBHEEALE WRELERK
MOEHREBEENRRFHEHE
TR - BEFIARELRER  ~5E
AR FAEXNTRENRE - MERRER
BREBEALBITHRG - AEBE/HESE
A TRITRBERAAEHNE TINEBHEM
B & AN E o B £2021F K2020%F12 A
SIBLEFETEUEREEANER K
RRBBEEHEE o
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31 December 2021
202112 A31H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
the ratio of interest-bearing bank borrowings to total
shareholders’ equity. Total shareholders’ equity comprises
all components of equity attributable to owners of the
parent. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

M. BEEREEEERBE(E)

EXEE(E)
AEBEFERERNABL X (B RRITE
REBRESAROLR)ERER K
REDABBREARER ARERE
MEFEE AEENERERKELRE
BLEREFNRAEKFE RBEHRE
BEARBELERMT :

2020

2020%F

HK$'000

FAET

Interest-bearing bank borrowings & B8R 1T &K 3,174 12,094
Total equity attributable to owners NAEB AR EERE

of the parent 588,520 552,503

Gearing ratio BERABELE 0.5% 2.2%
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31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. &KX A B #& ik &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

AR AR R E B R8BS R B

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: m
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&ET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BE REHE 3,313 -
Deposit % 290 —
Investments in subsidiaries R B RBHRE 78,563 78,563
Total non-current assets FEREBEERT 82,166 78,563
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and deposits ENRBERES 344 286
Due from subsidiaries JE WL BT 18 A A 375,234 394,256
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEED 2,473 9,023
Total current assets MBEELE 378,051 403,565
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accruals fE T R IE 1,550 2,473
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,694 —
Tax payable FE A B IR 135 173
Total current liabilities IR E LS 3,379 2,646
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 374,672 400,919
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EER AT EE
LIABILITIES 456,838 479,482
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,581 —
Net assets EEFE 455,257 479,482
EQUITY S
Share capital % 72,073 72,044
Reserves (note) & (M aE) 383,184 407,438
Total equity R Rt 455,257 479,482

e

=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2021

202112 A31H
35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. & A T M BB RK (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: (N2
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AArfEEBOBERT :
At 1 January 2020 R202061 A1R 257,751 123,578 4,080 64,410 449,819

36.

196

Total comprehensive income for ~ £E 2R AAE

the year - - - 40,454 40,454
Dividends e - - - (36,453) (36,453)
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1T BERHERS 1T AR

share options 5,642 - (4,107) - 1,535
Shares repurchased and cancelled % 3 BB 8 % 7% 84 (48,510) - - - (48,510)
Equity-settled share option NRERZENBERER

arrangement B - - 593 - 593
Transfer of share option reserve % U BE AR HERS 8 B 2 B2

upon forfeiture of share options Ik & - - (107) 107 -
At 31 December 2020 and 722020612A318 &

at 1 January 2021 2021%F1A1H 214,883 123,578 459 68,518 407,438

Total comprehensive income for ~ FE 2@ KA A%E

the year o = = 27,426 27,426
Dividends Be - - - (51,821) (51,821)
Issue of shares upon exercise of 17 i B AERS 217 10

share options 519 = (378) = 141
Transfer of share option reserve SR ARIEES E R = i

upon forfeiture of share options IR #E R & = - (81) 81 -
At 31 December 2021 72021412 A31H 215,402 123,578 = 44,204 383,184
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 36. HIEBMBHE
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised B SR RN 2022FE3 A10B EE = it i
for issue by the board of directors on 10 March 2022, KT o
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Five Year Financial Summary

TFEHMBEHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AEBERBERAERBRFENEEUANEE -
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BENFEEREZHES (FiEEE HIBLEZ
years, as extracted from the published audited financial BIBEHEIELBE E5, EHH L) &0
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out T °

below.
A SUMMARY OF RESULTS EEBRE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31B L EE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20214 2020%F 2019%F 20184 20174
(HK$000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(F#m) (FEL) (F&L) (F&L) (F#&T)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS #HEKEX%K

REVENUE A 766,793 638,507 784,998 831,072 728,159
Cost of sales 448 B A (467,815)  (375453)  (475,166)  (516,894)  (459,648)
Gross profit EA 298,978 263,054 309,832 314,178 268,511
Other income and gains, net  EMUA Rz F5 2,216 15,491 5,127 2,968 3,997
Selling and distribution HERDHRAX

expenses (118,561)  (107,223)  (115,863)  (117,147)  (108,913)
Administrative expenses THAX (77,215) (74,261) (79,204) (91,770)  (101,276)
Other expenses, net H A X F 58 (3,958) (3,841) (5,104) (11,068) (1,770)
Finance costs B & A (864) (1,441) (3,509) (4,513) (3,184)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM &K% £KBRBA

CONTINUING &= R

OPERATIONS 100,596 91,779 111,279 92,648 57,365
Income tax expense FTE A (20,352) (14,982) (21,466) (19,408) (14,688)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BFEKEEBNER

FROM CONTINUING &

OPERATIONS 80,244 76,797 89,813 73,240 42,677
DISCONTINUED DRIEEEXK

OPERATIONS
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE ERIEREELRER

YEAR FROM (B#8) &7

DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS = - (12,523) 4,240 5,697
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 80,244 76,797 77,290 77,480 48,374
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

LFMBRE (&)

A SUMMARY OF RESULTS (Continued) HEEBRE(Z

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31ALFE
2020 2019 2018 2017
20205 2019F 2018 20174
(HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(FHT) (FET) (FET) (F&T)

Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the parent NEIE 2SN
Profit for the year from FECEET
continuing operations F N A 80,244 76,797 89,813 73,240 42 677
(Loss)/profit for the year BRIEEEEE
from discontinued FR(BE)/
operations i A = - (14,335) 2,544 3,418
Profit for the year F X% A 80,244 76,797 75,478 75,784 46,095
Non-controlling interests R ER
Profit for the year from BRI EERK
discontinued operations F s A = - 1,812 1,696 2,279
Profit for the year F R - — 1,812 1,696 2,279

80,244 76,797 77,290 77,480 48,374
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LFMBRE (&)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERARE

As at 31 December

MW128318
2020 2019 2018 2017
20204 20194 2018%F 20174
(HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(F#&T) (F#&mx) (F#&mx) (T
Non-current assets FRBEE 182,278 162,020 165,632 142,127 147,473
Current assets TREEE 580,168 522,720 572,871 719,414 433,988
Current liabilities TEaE 152,707 121,485 169,764 284,226 291,960
Net current assets TMEEEFE 427,461 401,235 403,107 435,188 142,028
Non-current liabilities ERE AR 21,219 10,752 19,004 22,088 57,441
Net assets BEEE 588,520 552,503 549,735 554,327 232,060
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of &A% A AEMG
the parent B 588,520 552,503 549,735 536,508 214,169
Non-controlling interests FERER - - - 17,819 17,891
588,520 552,503 549,735 554,327 232,060
—ECFFHR BEEBRERERAT 199
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

LFMBRE (&)

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

EEUHEEER

As at and for the year ended 31 December
M12A3MEBEREZE12A31BLFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
Profitability ratios BERgE L=
Return on equity™ 25 B FR O 13.6% 13.9% 13.7% 14.1% 21.5%
Return on assets® & E B ;@ 10.5% 11.2% 10.5% 9.0% 8.3%
Liquidity ratios REBESHE
Current ratio® 7t &) b O 3.8 4.3 3.4 2.5 1.5
Quick ratio® RB) L @ 2.7 3.3 2.6 1.8 0.8
Capital adequacy ratios X A&ZFELL=
Gearing ratio® BEEBELERO 0.5% 2.2% 4.8% 29.1% 89.4%
Net cash/(debt) to equity Be  (8E)F
ratio® RERE S L RO 45.7% 47.9% 52.6% 32.1% (68.1)%
Notes: Bt 5T -

1)

200

Return on equity represents profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the parent as of the end of the same year.

Return on assets represents profit for the year as a percentage
of total assets as of the end of the same period.

Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities
as of the end of the year.

Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by
current liabilities as of the end of the year.

Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Total debt represents interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent at the end of the year. Net
debt represents interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and
cash equivalents.
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